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Independent auditor’s report
in accordance with article 14 of Legislative Decree No. 39 of 27 January 2010 and article 10 of
Regulation (EU) No. 537/2014

To the shareholders of
ALPERIA SPA

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of ALPERIA Group (the Group), which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as of 31 December 2020, the consolidated income
statement, statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in shareholders’ equity,
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of
the Group as of 31 December 2020, and of the result of its operations and cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European
Union, as well as with the regulations issued to implement article 9 of Legislative Decree No. 38/05.

Basts for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISA Italia).

Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of this report. We are independent of
Alperia SpA (the Company) pursuant to the regulations and standards on ethics and independence
applicable to audits of financial statements under Italian law. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were
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addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key Audit Matters

Auditing procedures performed in
response to key audit matters

Recoverability of the values of
intangible assets

Note 9.1 to the consolidated financial
statements “Concessions, goodwill and other
intangible assets”

As of 31 December 2020 about 26% of total
consolidated assets is comprised of intangible
assets, equal to Euro 583 million, originating
mainly from the allocation to the ‘Concessions’
of the excess prices paid on acquisition of
power generation entities over the respective
net equity values.

In a market characterised by a significant
volatility of electricity prices and a consequent
reduction of the investees’ performance the
Company, in accordance with IAS 36 as
adopted by the European Union, carried out an
impairment test, using the discounted cash
flow method, to measure the recoverable
amounts of concessions. The cash flows have
been estimated based on the production
estimation foreseen until the end of each
hydroelectric concessions.

In consideration of the magnitude of the values
allocated to concessions and the complexity of
the process of estimation of the recoverable
amounts based on the future cash flows that
these will generate, we identified the
measurement of concessions as a key audit
matter with reference to the existence of
possible impairment losses and consequently

The auditing procedures performed involved
verifying the procedures adopted by management
to identify possible impairment losses of
intangible assets (concessions) in accordance with
IAS 36 — Impairment of Assets.

In detail, we obtained the impairment test of
concessions carried out by management, which we
verified also with the support of valuation experts
belonging to the PwC network.

Our tests concerned the key assumptions used in
the application of the impairment test, which is
based on estimating the cash flows each
concession is expected to generate in future.
Specifically, we verified the reasonableness of (i)
the power price curve used, (ii) the estimated
production capacity, and (iii) the discount rate
applied to the estimated future cash flows.

Moreover, we verified management’s ability to
prepare estimates by comparing actual
performance data with past business plans, the
consistency of projections used with the current
business plans, as well as the mathematical
accuracy of the calculation of the estimated future
cash flows based on the above-mentioned
assumptions.
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Key Audit Matters Auditing procedures performed in
response to key audit matters

their appropriate recognition in the We discussed with management the conclusions

consolidated financial statements. reached by it following the valuation procedure. In
that context we verified that the carrying amounts
of concessions in the consolidated financial
statements were consistent with the outcome of
the impairment test verified as stated above.

Finally, we verified the completeness and accuracy
of disclosures provided in the notes to the
consolidated financial statements.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true and
fair view in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European
Union, as well as with the regulations issued to implement article 9 of Legislative Decree No. 38/05
and, in the terms prescribed by law, for such internal control as management determines is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

Management is responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and, in
preparing the consolidated financial statements, for the appropriate application of the going concern
basis of accounting, and for disclosing matters related to going concern. In preparing the consolidated
financial statements, management uses the going concern basis of accounting unless management
either intends to liquidate ALPERIA SPA or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do
S0.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing, in the terms prescribed by law, the
Group’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements

as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a
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guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISA Italia)
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit conducted in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISA Italia), we
exercised professional judgement and maintained professional scepticism throughout the audit.
Furthermore:

o we identified and assessed the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error; we designed and performed audit procedures
responsive to those risks; we obtained audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control;

o we obtained an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control;

o we evaluated the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management;
o we concluded on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of

accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern;

. we evaluated the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation;

. we obtained sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the
entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion on the consolidated financial
statements.
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We communicated with those charged with governance, identified at an appropriate level as required by
ISA Italia regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identified during our
audit.

We also provided those charged with governance with a statement that we complied with the
regulations and standards on ethics and independence applicable under Italian law and communicated
with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determined those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period
and are therefore the key audit matters. We described these matters in our auditor’s report.

Additional Disclosures required by Article 10 of Regulation (EU) No 537/2014

On 23 March 2016 and 12 May 2017, the shareholders of ALPERIA SPA in general meeting engaged us to
perform the statutory audit of the Company’s and consolidated financial statements for the years ending
31 December 2016 to 31 December 2024.

We declare that we did not provide any prohibited non-audit services referred to in article 5, paragraph
1, of Regulation (EU) No. 537/2014 and that we remained independent of the Company in conducting
the statutory audit.

We confirm that the opinion on the consolidated financial statements expressed in this report is
consistent with the additional report to those charged with governance, in their capacity as audit
committee, prepared pursuant to article 11 of the aforementioned Regulation.

Report on Compliance with other Laws and Regulations

Opinion in accordance with Article 14, paragraph 2, letter e), of Legislative Decree No.
39/10 and Article 123-bis, paragraph 4, of Legislative Decree No. 58/98

Management of ALPERIA SPA is responsible for preparing a report on operations and a report on the
corporate governance and ownership structure (with reference to the information requested by article
123bis, paragraph 2, letter b) of Legislative Decree 58,/1998) of the ALPERIA Group as of 31 December
2020, including their consistency with the relevant consolidated financial statements and their
compliance with the law.
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We have performed the procedures required under auditing standard (SA Italia) No. 720B in order to
express an opinion on the consistency of the report on operations and of the specific information
included in the report on corporate governance and ownership structure referred to in article 123-bis,
paragraph 4, of Legislative Decree No. 58/98, with the consolidated financial statements of the ALPERIA
Group as of 31 December 2020 and on their compliance with the law, as well as to issue a statement on
material misstatements, if any.

In our opinion, the report on operations and the specific information included in the report on
corporate governance and ownership structure mentioned above are consistent with the consolidated
financial statements of ALPERIA SPA as of 31 December 2020 and are prepared in compliance with the
law.

With reference to the statement referred to in article 14, paragraph 2, letter e), of Legislative Decree No.

39/10, issued on the basis of our knowledge and understanding of the Company and its environment
obtained in the course of the audit, we have nothing to report.

Statement in accordance with article 4 of Consob’s Regulation implementing
Legislative Decree No. 254 of 30 December 2016

Management of ALPERIA SPA is responsible for the preparation of the non-financial statement pursuant
to Legislative Decree No. 254 of 30 December 2016.

We have verified that management approved the non-financial statement.

Pursuant to article 3, paragraph 10, of Legislative Decree No. 254 of 30 December 2016, the non-
financial statement is the subject of a separate statement of compliance issued by ourselves.
Trento, 20 April 2021

Pricewaterho seCoopers SpA

Alberto Michelotti
(Partner)
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Domestic energy data

In 2020, there was an important decline in demand for clectricity in Traly compared to the
previous year (- 5.3%0), mainly caused by the epidemic health emergency resulting from the spread

of COVID-19 (better known as Coronavirus).

As 18 known, on 30 January 2020), the World Health Organization declared this epidemic a public

health emergency of international importance.

By resolution of the Council of Ministers of 31 January 2020, a state of emetrgency was declared
in Italy for six months in relation to the health risk associated with the onset of pathologies

deriving from Coronavitus.

Over the following weeks and months, various countties, including Italy, and the authondes
responsible for managing the emergency, adopted severe measures to contain the spread of the
virus with consequent significant and widespread effects of various kinds that inevitably had a
negative impact on the economic, production and financial sitvation, with a consequent

depressive effect both on demand and on the value of commodities.

Subscquently, the cmergency was extended, for the first time, with a resolution of the Council of
Ministers of 29 july 2020 until 15 October 2020 and, a second time, with a resolution of the
Council of Ministers of 7 October 2020 until 31 January 2021: in both cases, the extension was
motivated “ar g consequence of the health ritk associated with the onset of pathologies deviving from transmissible

viral agenty”.

Regarding the trend in electricity demand in Italy, see the following table.
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Encrgy balance in Italy (GWh) 2020 2019 Change %

Hydrocleetic 47990 47390 +0.8%
I'hermal 175370 187317 -647 0
Geothermal 3.040 5.689 S
Wind 18.547 20,034 I
Photovoltae 25549 23.320 + 9.6
Total net production 273,108 283,950 -3.8%
[mport 39,787 43,975 -9.5%
lixport 587 5.834 + 3L.0%0
Voreson batunce 32200 38141 -13.6%
Pumpinyr consumption 2.557) (2.469) + 30"
Electricity demand (GWh) 302,751 319,622 -5.3%

(Sanrce Terna Spa, Monthiy Repait au the Uilectsrerty S15fean. Decenrber 2020)

In 2020, the demand for electricity came to 302.8 'T'Wh, of which 51°s was met by production
from Non-Renewable inergy Sources, 38" from Renewable Energy Sources and the remainder

from the foreign balance.

Net production in 2020 recorded a decrease of 3.8%0 (-10.8 'T'Wh), falling to 273.1 1'Wh, mainly
caused by the drop in production from thermal sources (-6.4%) and from wind sources (-7.4%0);

on the other hand, photovoltaie (+ 9.6%0) and hyvdraulic (+ 0.8" %) sources increascd.
‘The foreign balance (Imports - exports) decreased significanty by 15.6% 0,

Looking at the encrgy balance data for cach month, it can be seen that the demand for clectricity
in \pril 2020 alone fell by 4.2 1'Wh due t the Cotonavirus compared to the same month of the

previous year.
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\s in recent vears, July saw the highest demand for clectricity m 2020 (28.9 "1"\Wh), whi%‘ Re

Jowest demand was in April (20.0°1Wh).

Concerning the trend of the single purchase price of clectricity, there was a drastic decrease
during the year under review (- 25.6"0): the single national price (PUN) went down from an

average of approximately Huro 52/MWh to just under Tluro 39/MWh,

Single National Price (PTUUN) — Monthly 2020 2019 Change %

Average (Euro/MWh)

January 47,47 67.65 - 20.8%
lehruary 39.30 57.67 - 319"
AMarch 3199 52,88 3.5
Apyril 24.81 53.35 53.5%
May 21.79 50.67 57.0"
June 28.01 43.58 42.3%
July 38.01 5231 273"
\uigust 40.32 49.54 18.6%n
Septomber 48.80 51.18 470
October 43.57 52.82 - 17.5%
November 48.75 4816 + 1.2%
Decembe 5404 4334 + 24.7%
Annual average 38.92 52.32 - 25.6%

(Saurce Clestore Mesiati Vnergetics Spon Stetistics)

Tor the energy matkets, the effects of the wotldwide spread of the Coronavirus were patt of a
context already characterised by a series of markedly beatish factors, amplifying their effects and

leading to record low prices in the first half of 2020.
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‘The lowest point was reached in .\pril and May, coinciding with the first wave ol the Coronavirus,

in the last month, the PUN cven fell to 21.79 Euro/NMWh.

Starting in June, the price partially recovered following the casing of restrictive measures imposed
by the health emergency and then fell again in October due to the sccond wave of the

Coronavirus.

In 2020, the PUN recached its lowest level since the launch of the Power lixchange; see, in this
R )

regard, the next table.

Single Purchase Price (PUN) « annual average (Euro/MWh)
200 (Apnl to Deeembir) 51.60
203 3850
2000 7475
207 0n.H9
2008 B0 WY
NHIY 0372
20100 6d4.12
2011 7223
2012 A
2013 062,99
2014 248
045 5231
2006 4278
2007 5395
2018 61.31
219 5232
2020 3R02

(g € ctore Moot Larerslog Apa. Stalreins)

However, it should be noted that the PUN is not the actual price at which the Alpetia Group
sclls irs production, which instead is affected by a number of factors such as production

concentrated in the summer months, tming and - above all - coverage strategies.
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to 70.7 billion cubic metres; the scectors that recorded the most significant reduction were
thermoclectric (24.4 billion cubic metres, -5.7"0 compared to 2019) and industrial (13.2 billion
cubic merres, -6.1"%9). Consumption in the residential sector also fell (31.0 billion cubic metres, -

2.404),

‘The significant reduction occurred during the first half of 2020, again as a result of the spread of
the COVID-19 pandemic and related containment measures. 'The return of winter temperatures
in line with seasonal averages, together with the gradual cconomic recovery, allowed gas demand

to recover shightly in the latter part of the year.
ixports registered a record negative figure at 2.1 billion cubic metres (-6.8%0).
Injections into storage systems also fell, amounting to 10.6 billion cubic metres (-8.2%).

On the supply side, total imports (amounting to 65.9 billion cubic metres) were down 6.9%
compared to 2019; flows through gas pipelines (-6%) and LNG regasifiers (-10%) both declined.

In November, the new TAP pipeline started operations with an entry point at Melendugno (Lecce).
3.9 billion cubic metres, domestic production fell by around 15%.
On the other hand, deliverics from storage increased by 13.6% to 11.5 billion cubic metres.

In terms of prices, the annual natural gas price at PSV fell to an all-time low of Euro 10.55/MWh,
giving up around BEuro 6/MWh over 2019 (-35%), in line with the dynamics recorded by the

main European references.
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‘I'he Alperia Group is closcly monitoring the evolution of provincial, national and 1:U cnergy
regulations and, in particular, those concerning hydroclectric concessions for latge-scale use, to

A8sCss any Impact on its operations.

In February 2020, the Prime Minister’s Office, Department for Regional Affairs and Autonomy,
started to examine the progress of the procedute to approve regional and provineial laws, at the
regions and \utonomous Provinces, so that the Government could assess the advisability of
submitting relative draft laws w the Huropean Commission for review; however, it should be
noted that the deadline of 31 Match 2020, to regulate by law ... the methods und procedures for
assiening concessions for the large-seale nse of wuier for hydroeleciric purposes .7 only concetns ordinaty

regions and not the A\utonomous Provinces.

With Article 125 bis of Decree Law 18 of 17 March 2020 (the “Cura Italia” |Cute Ttaly| decrec),
converted - with amendments - by Law 27 of 24 April 2020, the aforementioned deadline of 31

March 2020 was extended to 31 October 2020 in relation to the health Cmergency.

Asa result of this extension, the deadline, previously set ar 31 December 2023, for the completion
of procedures to award concessions expiring prior to that date, was in turn extended to 31 July

2024,

‘These last exteasions do not concern regions with a special stature and the \utonomous
Provinces of Trento and Bolzano/Bozen; it is hoped that the same extensions will soon be

provided for the latter as well.

s regards regional laws, on 5 June 2020, the Council of Ministers challenged the tegional law of
Lombardy (Taw 5 of 8 April 2020), which was the first implementation of provisions in \rticle
11 quater of Taw 12/2019, converung - with amendments - Decree Law 135/2018; the reason
given by the Government lies in the fact that some provisions of the aforementioned regional

10
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law, concerning the methods and procedures for assigning concessions for the large-scale use of

water for hydroclectric purposes would violate the provisions of the Constitution.

\fter Lombardy, other regions (Piedmont, Friuli Venezia Giulia and Fmilia Romagna) and the
Autonomous Province of L'rento itself Law 9 of 21 October 2020) legislated on the mattet; the
Council of Ministers, in the meetings of 19 and 23 December 2020, also decided to challenge the

law of the Province of Trento and law of the region of Piedmont respectively.

At the time of drafting this report, however, the Autonomous Province of Bolzano/Bozen had

not yet approved the related legislation.

Regarding the devolution of legislative competence for the assignment of concessions for the
large-scale use of water for hydroelectric purposes to the Regions and Autonomous Provinces of
‘Itento and Bolzano/Bozen, the Competition and Market Authority (AGCM) intervened, in its
opinion of 3 Scptember 2020 sent to Parliament, to the Prime Ministet’s Office and to the

Conference of Regions and two Autonomous Provinces.

After noting that the entire discipline of tender procedures comes under the "prosection of conpetition
attribuded to the exclusive lgislative competence of the state ™, the AGCM noted that "éz wlvo appears necessary,
in application of the principle of loyal institutional collaboration, o standardise, as far as possible and while
respecting justified differentiations, respective criterid for aecess Yo procedures for assigning concessions, avoiding an
unjustified excessive vegulatory fragmentalion which, in addition lo increasing the cosis of participating in lfenders
1o the disadvantage of smaller operators, also creates an artificial division of the rervetory in the production of energy

[rom hydroelectric sources, which is part of the wider national electricity generation market ™.

Reference is also made - in relation to the hydroclectric sector - to the so-called Colao plan (plan
containing the proposals of the Committee of experts to relaunch the country after COVID-19),
ptesented in June 2020 and containing "Initiatives for the relaunch™: Ttaly 2020-2022"; this plan

11
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suggested “Swspending the effect of Legistative Decree 135718 % Sumplefications” and bringng Italian

Jegislation into line with that of other 1utropean countries (concessions withoul expiry or renewed without lender)”.

With regatd to this last aspect, it should be noted that the start of any tender procedures to assign
concessions, without waiting for common guidelines to be defined at 1uropean level on these
procedutes and on other aspects relevant from a competitive pomnt of view (specifically including
those relating to the enhancement of concession works at the end of the concession) would risk
having highly distorting cffects on competition among energy companies and seriously affecting
the national interest of States which, like Italy, have alrcady adopted highly pro-competitive

legislation.

In fact, significant asymmetrics remain between the levels of openness to competition of the
hydroclectric market in the various Member States, some of which still have very restrictive
regimes, which cffectively exclude real compettion between companices. ‘This finding is also
cleatly confirmed by the opening of specific infringement procedures by the [uropean
Commission against \ustria, Germany, Poland, the United Kingdom and Sweden for having
granted new authotizations for the construction and management of hydroclectrie plants without

using, transparent and impartial sclection procedures.

‘Tender procedures should only be launched if and when equality of arms among all European
opetators has been adequately ensured by the Commission or the Furopean legislator, possibly
also by introducing common guidclines or rules, which oblige all Member States to open their
hydroclectric markets to the same extent and at the same time and define a minimum body of

shared principles on the aspects thar have the grearest impact on competifion between

companics.
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The Luropean Commission - replying, on January 13, 2021, to a guestion on hyvdrockggeric
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]

concessions - also declared that it does not require " mational medasires ainred ai ensiring conplicnee with

LU L in the varions Member States lo be implemented simultancounsty in these Member states. 'The assessment

of a Member State's compliance with iU law iy carried ont on an individial basis in each infrineement procedure.”

As may Dbe infetred from above, the framework regarding concessions of hydroclectric
concessions for large-scale use is stll strongly debated and stll in progress; the matter is of
particular importance, as any regulatory changes will inevitably have effects on the financial

situation of current concession holders.

Another particulatly important issue for the energy sector was the publication of the Integrated
National [inergy and Climate Plan (INECP), prepared by the Ministry of the Environment, I.and
and Sea and the Ministry of Infrastructure and Transport, and published by the Ministry of

“conomic Development on 21 January 2020.

‘The INECP was sent to the European Commission, in accordance with Regulation (TWU)
2018/1999, thus completing the initiative started in December 2018, in which the Plan was

positively reviewed by insttutions involved, citizens and all stakeholders.

'This Plan scts out the 2030 national targets for enetgy efficiency, rencwable sources and CO2
emission reductions, as well as targets for encrgy security, interconnections, the single cnetgy
market and competition, development and sustainable mobility, and also outlines the measures

to be adopted for each target to be achieved.

As known, the document is structured around the five pillars of the Energy Union: (1)
decarbonisation, (ii) energy efficiency, (iii) energy security, (iv) development of the intcrnal encrgy

market, (v) rescarch, innovation and competitiveness.
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‘The main objectives of the Plan, in relaton to rencwables, atc:

e by 2020: RES energy production to make up 17% of gross final energy consumption

(compared to 20%o in the IIU) and a share of 10°0 in transport (same share as in the 1U);

e Dy 2030: RES energy production to make up 30% of gross final energy consumption
(compared to 32% 1n the HU) and a share of 220 in transport (against a fotecast of 14%4

for the 15U).

Another important part of the encrgy sector is represented by the so-called capacity matket; as is
known, this concerns the remuncration system for the availability of electricity production
capacity, approved at the end of June 2019 with a specific deeree of the competent Minister for

[iconomic Development.

As s known, the first auctions for the delivery vear 2022 and 2023 were held in November 2019,
in which Alperia ‘T'rading Srl successfully took part, being awarded both existing and new

capacity.

With a view to new post-2023 auctions, Italy presented the announced Implementation Plan for
the Tralian clecrricity marker to the U Commission - at the end of June 2020, concluding thar
the capacity market must continue to operate in the coming vears to provide the right signals of

a long-term price necessary to ensure security of supply.

Given the objectuve of phasing out coal production by 2025, the government considers it
necessary to implement future capacity market auctions. In any case, all the parties involved (the
Ministry for liconomic Development, ARER.\ and Terna) are strongly committed to developing
the design ot the capacity market based on monitoring its effects and the results of the envisaged

market reforms, to ensure a better achievement of its goals.

14
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I'he mechanism obtained a substandal green light from the U Commission, which i its
ZETT

response to the Ttalian Implementation Plan limited itsclf to recommending that the capacin

market comply with the provisions of the Regulation on the internal electricity market. The idea

of MISE, ARER.\ and ‘Terna seems to be to confirm the mechanism alrcady adopted for

2022/2023, even if the evident impact of the COVID-19 emergency on electricity consumption

appears to call for new assessments on the capacities to auction.

Some appeals filed with the Milan Regional Administrative Court and the EU Coutt are pending

on this matter.

Article 12, paragraph 3 of Dectee Law 162 of 30 December 2019, converted1-I1with
amendments 11! by Law 8 of 28 February 2020 on “Urgent provisions on exitending legul lferms, the
organisation of public administrations, and technological innovation” is a significant provision; this article
has postponed the end of the market affording greater protection in the clectricity scctor from 1

July 2020 to:

® 1 January 2021, for small enterprises, as per Article 2(7) of Directive (EU) 2019/944 of

the European Patliament and of the Council of 5 June 2019;

e 1 January 2022, for domestic customers and microenterprises, as per Article 2(6) of the

same Directive.

The above Article also rules that ARERA must adopt provisions to ensute, as from the above
dates, a service offering gradual protection for end customers without an electricity suppliet, as

well as specific measures to prevent unjustified price increases and changes in supply conditions

to protect such customers. - — el LS S
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ARERA has also been appointed to establish, for microcnterpriscs, the contract capacity

commitment as an identifying criterion in addition to the criteria already indicated in the
European Directive.

The Minister for FEconomic Development, after consulting with ARFRA and the Antitrust
Authority, was appointed to define, in a specific decree, subject to an opinion from competent
Parliamentary Commissions, the procedures and criteria for the informed entry of end customers
on the market, also considering the need to guarantee competition, and a plurality of supplicrs

and offers on the free markert,

\nother important provision concerns Article 42 bis of the aforementioned Decree Taw

162/2019, which introduced a new aspect concerning self-consumption from renewable sources.

Specifically, the Article — implementing Directive (I3U) 2018/2001 of the Furopean
Parliament and of the Council of 11 December 2018 on the promotion of the use of energy from

renewable  sources allows, in compliance with specific conditions, collective  self-

consumption to be arranged, L.e. to create renewable energy communities.

In light of this provision, the Minister of Hconomic Development - by decree of 16 September
2020 - identified the rariff incentivizing the promotion of collective self-consumption and energy
communitics based on renewable sources, in order to promote the cnergy transiton and
ccological system of the country's clectricity system, with environmental, cconomic and social
benefits for citzens.

The new regime - which aims to transform the current centralized clectricity system, powered by
fossil fuels, into a decentralized and efficient system, operating with elean, inexhaustible and non-

polluting encrgices - has determined the incentive equal, respectively, to:

16
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e 100 uro/MWh for plants included in expetimental collectve sclf-consumptio
configurations;

e 110 luro/MWh for plants included in renewable enetgy communitics.

I'he mcentive, managed by the GSE, is for a petiod of 20 yeats and can be combined with the

Superbonus 110%a (10 which reference is made below) within the limits established by law.

Regarding the latter, reference is made to Decree Law 34 of 19 May 2020 "Urgens measures in the
Jield of bealth, support for work and the economy, as well as sovial policies related to the cpidemic emergency cansed
by CO1ID-19" (better known as the Relaunch dectee), converted - with amendments - by law 77

of 17 July 2020.

Onc of the numerous measures envisaged by the dectree in question, which took the form of a
package worth luro 55 billion to support Italian businesses and families in the so-called Phase 2
post COVID-19, refers to incentives for energy efficiency, the earthquake bonus, photovoltaics
and clectric vehicle charging stations (Article 119); these incentives consist of a tax deduction,
equal to 110% of the expenses incurred in the period from 1 July 2020 to 31 December 2021, to

be divided into five annual instalments.

'This considerable tax bonus, combined with the option (Article 121) to have a discount on the
amount due paid in advance by the suppliers who catried out the wotk, ot to transfer the tax
credit to other parties, including banks and other financial intermediaries, instead of having a
direct deduction, represents an extraordinary driving force to relaunch the activitics of companices
operating in specific sectors (including the two companies of the Alperia Group, .\lperia Bartucci

and Gruppo Green Power).

‘T'he aforementioned deadline of 31 December 2021 was subsequently extended - by Law 178 of

30 December 2020 (the so-called budget law 2021) - to 30 June 2022; for work on condominiums,
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completed by at least 60% o by 30 June 2022, the bonus also applies for expenses incutred up to
31 December 2022, "The decree also establishes that a part of the expense incurred in 2022 will
have to be divided among those entitled to it in four annual instalments of an equal amount,

instead of five instalments.

With Legisladve Decree 73 of 14 July 2020, the 14U directive 2018/2002 was finally implemented,

amending the previous U directve 2012/27 on energy efficiency.

‘T'he numerous provisions inttoduced, include the obligation for heat disttibution companies to
install remote reading meters, starting from 25 October 2020; it was also established that, by 1

January 2027, all meters will be equipped with devices for remorte reading.

Minimum requirements for billing and consumption information for heating, cooling and

domestic hot water wete also introduced.

National Recovery and Resilience Plan

On 21 Julv 2020, the representatives of all 27 iU governments - at the Furopean Council -
reached an agreement to establish the "Nexs Geweration 1:U" INGIU) plan; ar the heart of the
programme is the so-called "Rewrery and Resilience aciliy” (RR1Y), which provides for the
establishment of a fund of Euro 672.5 billion (divided into luro 312.5 billion of grants and Iluro
360.0 billion of loans) to be used for the recovery of the Huropean cconomy affected by the

epidemic crisis,

Since  August, the Inrerministerial Committee for Huropean  Affairs (CTAIY) has been
coordinating work on the drafting of the "National Recorery and Resiience Pl (NRRP), the

submission of which is a prerequisite for access to RRI7 funds; in a document dated 15 September
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2020, the CLALL approved a proposal for guidelines for the drafting of the NRRP, which was

submictted to the Tralian Parliament for consideration.

[t ts clear from the content of the Guidelines that the focus of the NRRP will be on actions aimed
at ensuring - first and foremost - the green and digital transition of Ttaly, to which most of the
available resources will be allocated. The Guidelines have also identified the critetia for selecting
projects to be included in the NRRP: these criteria focus on the feasibility and monitorability of

projects, positive impacts on the community and employment, and efficient use of resources.

On 13 and 14 October 2020, Parliament issued a guideline, inviting the Government to draw up

the Plan, ensuring the broad mvolvement of the private sector, local authorities and excellence

that the countty can offer in all sectors.

‘The plans must be submitted by the Member States by April 2021, after which the Huropean
Commission will have 2 months for the assessment phase, followed by the plans being sent to

IECOIIN for final approval, which must take place within 4 weeks.

The RRE resources allocated to Italy are very substantial, estimated at Euro 191.4 billion, divided

between Euro 63.8 billion of grants and Euro 127.6 billion of loans.

'The total resources provided by the NGEU, taking into account the additional liuro 77.5 billion
that will be channelled to the Member States through the EU budget 2021-2027, amount to Euro
750 billion, of which about Euto 209 billion will be provided to our country: the latter amount
represents approximately 28% of the total resources allocated. This 1s vety high compared to
Ttaly's shate of KU Gross National Income (GNI), which stood at 13.2 per cent in 2018, This
testifics, on the one hand, the importance of the NGEU as an initiative to rebalance the Union's

cconomic petformance and, on the other, the important result achieved by the government
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during negotiations and the opportunity available to the country, if the tunds are used cfficiently

and according to a forward-looking strategy.

‘The NGEU therefore represents a unique opportunity for Italy to relaunch investments and
implement important reforms, as part of a plan for recovery and transition towards a more

envitonmentally and socially sustainable economy.
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Management of the COVID-19 epidemic emergency

Since 23 February 2020), the Aperia Group has acted promptly to put in place and communicate
the necessary measures to ensure the protection of staff health and continuity, with the usual
efficiency, of cssential services for its operating areas. It has done this in accordance with the

provisions and measures issued by the national and provincial public administrations.

\n Iimergency Board, with the senior managers of the parent company and of vatious Business
Units, as well as the HSIY manager, was set up from the outset, meeting dailv to discuss the

various nitiatives to be taken in order to protect the health of staff and interests of the Group.

In addition, the Committee for implementing and monitoring the rules set out in the regulatoty
protocol for COVID-19 measures of 25 August 2020 was set up, with the participadon of the

most representative trade unions.

In a context of considetable and increasing concern, the Alperia Group rook out insurance cover
in mid-March for its staff, to support any critical or difficult situations following discharge from

hospiral.
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Employees who could work remotely and who did not need to be present on company pgemises
started working from home; in a short time, as many as 700 people (including directors) out ©

some 1,100 employees of the Group, were working from home.

Two Group companies (Edyna Stl and Alperia Greenpower Stl), as well as Alperia Spa, requested
the adoption of the Wage Supplementary Fund (Fondo Integrazione Salariale (FIS) for those
employees unable to carry out their activities remotely on a regular basis; the application to adopt
this measute, which mainly concerned the months of April, May and November, led to these

employees being paid the difference between the amount paid by the FIS and their salary.

Between the end of April and the beginning of May, a survey was catried out to assess employees'

appreciation of working from home.

Some 550 employees took part; the factors they valued most were: no commuting time between
home and work, greater proximity to the family, greater concentration and productivity. The
main negative aspect that emerged was the lack of interaction with other colleagues. 55% of the
participants wete in favour of a mixed format, at the end of the health emetgency - spending half

their days working from home, and the other half working at the office.

In order to increase knowledge and prevention of the Cotonavirus, 2 mandatoty online training
course was otganised for Group employees in June 2020, followed up by tests on what they had
learnt. The course was held in cooperation with Assoimprenditori Alto Adige-
Unternehmerverband Sudtirol the South Tyrol Business Association promoting corpotate

culture and safety at work.

Furthermore, with the aim of providing employers of Group companies with feedback and an
assessment of the extent to which the prevention and protection measures provided for in the
Protocol of 24 April 2020 signed between the Government and social partners (supplementing
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the previous Protocol of 14 March 2020), adopted by the same companies, had been
implemented, a specific audit was voluntarily requested from an independent certification body
(IMQ); the audits were conducted in July 2020 and the IMQ expressed a favourable opinion on

the issue of certification "acording to the IMQ COV/1D-19 Restriction scheme".

As we have seen, the emergency caused by the epidemic has changed the way we wotk, through
temote working and using and consolidating new technologies. Technological innovation has
provided new answers to the need to simplify and dematerialise work processes, and has offered
the chance to guide changes in remote working - from being an “experiment” to a new way of
flexible working - capable of empoweting the autonomy and potential of each person, whilst

safeguarding social and environmental sustainability.

As regards this last aspect, a trade union agreement was signed on 21 December 2020 between
Alperia Group companies and trade unions, concerning smart and remote working, based partly

on expetience gained and partly on the outcome of the aforementioned employee sutvey.

Access to remote working will be on a voluntary basis, with individual written agreements signed
between the companies concerned and employces pursuant to Article 19 of Law 81/2017. These
agreements will normally be for an indefinite petiod, with each party having the right to terminate

the agrecment with 30 days' notice (90 days' notice for personnel employed under Law 68/1999),

Individual agreements may enable employees to work for up to a maximum of 8 working days a
month off the premises of the companies concerned; this limit will be extended to a maximum

of 12 working days a month in the following cases:

e if the employee lives at least 25 km from the place of work;
¢ if the employee has at least one child under 14 years of age and proves that the other

parent is unable to care for him/her;
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e if the employee takes leave for him/herself ot for a family member under Law 104/199

As a further measure supporting the work/life balance, the number of days employees may work

remotely will be increased in certain circumstances, service needs permitting.

The statt of the agreement has been postponed to the first day of the month following the end
of the health emergency as provided for by government measures. The first year of the agreement
is experimental, in order to assess - in a "non-emergency” period - the adoption of this

otrganisational approach to remote working, and to make any additions/changes if the need arises.

As far as relations with the territory ate concerned, the Alperia Group promptly took action by
planning various initiatives to support end customets: South Tyrolean companies were granted a
three-month motatotrium on the payment of electricity and gas bills issued in March/April/May,
while domestic customers on the free market who were unemployed ot temporatily laid off in

the period from March to May were given a two-month electricity rebate.

The Alpetia Group also donated a total of Euro 1 million to a number of associations involved

f(\"‘ o, e’ st it

in the management of the aforesaid emergency. 2
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New business plan 2020-2024 K&

On 26 and 27 November 2020, respectively, the Management Board and the Supervisory Board
of Alpetia Spa approved One Vision 2020-2024, the new strategic plan that will take the Group to

2024, combining sustainability objectives with significant growth in all Business Units.

2020 was a landmark time of change, leading the world to step up on issues of sustainability,
multi-channel and customet-centricity, themes that will be the basis of the Alperia Group's

strategy for the coming years. In patticular, the issue of energy transition, that can no longer be
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put off - requites all operators to rethink their strategy by focusing on sustainability and

customers. The next few years will be crucial to reviewing many energy consumption habits, also

by leveraging the significant resources that the European Commission and the national

overnment intend to allocate for this ose. Alperia's role in this enerpy transiton is
g putp p gy

tepresented, above all, by the investments of the Smart Region BU, which the Group intends to

use to create over 120 MW of new renewable power in more than 5 thousand installations, for

an overall saving of 228 kton of CO2 avoided, thanks also to energy refurbishment works.

In summary, Ore Vision 2020-2024 includes:

Euro 1.7 billion of total investments with considerable attention paid to the economic,
social and territorial impacts;

growth in EBITDA to over Euro 300 million in 2024,

a growth focus on energy transition and customers with investments of more than Euro
500 million in the energy refurbishment of buildings;

80% of investments directed towards at least 10 of the UN sustainability goals (UN
SDGs);

investments also in the Group's traditional sectots: hydroelectric generation, distribution
and district heating, which together will absorb around Euro 700 million;

a budget with net debt/EBITDA guidance of no more than 2.5x throughout the plan and
2x at the end of 2024;

the Group will be Carbon Neutral by 2024, making a significant conttibution to the
objectives of the South Tyrol 2050 Climate-Energy Plan;

talent management and generational turnover to accompany growth and develop internal

resources;
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the continued strong drive towards digitisation throughout the Group;

® attention to local aggregation initiatives, for the development of strategic partnerships;

the upward trend in dividends was confirmed.

For individual BUs, the following ptiotities and growth initiatives ate planned, in more detail:

Energy production

task force for the renewal of the 8 large-scale concessions expiring at the end of 2023;
investments for the refurbishment of the Lasa/Iaas and S. Pancrazio/St. Pankraz
pressure pipelines;

full refurbishment of the Cardano/Kardaun, Bressanone/Brixen, Lasa/Laas and Lana
power plants;

confirmation of the Capacity Market also for 2024;

growth for new hydroelectric power plants following upcoming new tendets for large-
scale concession;

total investments of Euro 310 million.

Commercial and Trading

important growth of the customer base for both organic growth and growth through

acquisitions;

development of an omnichannel network by continuing territorial consolidation,;
the new Full Digital initiative with challenging new customer acquisition targets;
development of the Asset Management portfolio for non-owned plants;

development of additional trading and Demand Response setvices;
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e investments of over Euro 290 million.
Networks

e installadon of over 260 thousand new generation meters of which 20 thousand meters for
other local disttibutors;

® continuous investments to ensure network resilience and increase the quality and
continuity of the electrical service;

o consolidation and integration of the Bolzano/Bozen and Metano/Metan network;

¢ construction of new important primary plants and new medium voltage network
backbones;

e growth in gas networks;

e orowth in services to other network operators in the tertitory;

¢ investments of over Euro 360 million.

Heat and Services

continued development of district heating in Bolzano/Bozen;
improvement of Merano/Meran's enetgy mix;

construction of 3 new cogeneration plants in Bolzano/Bozen;
consolidation of other district heating plant operators;
construction of a cooling plant in Bolzano/Bozen;

investments of around Furo 85 million.

Smatt Region

efficiency of buildings (including through thermal cladding);

development of domestic photovoltaics;
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® innovative energy efficiency solutions based on algotithms, data analysis and aru‘%ﬂ\

intelligence;

e continued development of Smart Health, Smart Land and Smart City solutions;

¢ development of energy efficiency and facility management solutions also for public
administration and health, including through strategic partnerships;

e continued development of sustainable mobility (electric and hydrogen) both for the
infrastructure of the territory and for the development of innovative commercial

solutions;

e total investments of over Euro 700 million (of which about 500 million for the

Superbonus 110%). (\i: o HARCA BA;:;“
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Corporate reorganisation Y AN

Duting 2020, wotk continued on the disposal - as envisaged in the Group's industrial plan - of

certain investnents deemed non-strategic, as well as the acquisiion of other corporate

investments.

Before highlighting the main transactions catried out, it should be noted that on 22 October 2020
the Management Board of Alpetia Spa (with a positive opinion from the Supervisory Board on
9 November 2020) approved the M&A Management Policy; this Policy sets out provisions for
the Group, to ensure the transparency, formal and substantive fairness and objectivity of mergers
and acquisitions. The Policy is also designed to ensute, on the one hand, an adequate and timely
flow of information to the Boards on the Group’s mergers and acquisitions, and, on the other
hand, clear visibility of (i) the information required by the Boards and (ii) the timing of the
approval of transactions, in accordance with management requirements and market standards.
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Having made this brief but necessary introduction, it should be noted that on 14 May 2020,
Alperia Greenpower Stl signed a binding agreement subject to conditions precedent for the sale
- to the then minority shareholder Fintel Energia Group Spa - of its 60% stake in the share capital
of Selsolar Monte San Giusto Stl; some provisions of this agreement were subsequently amended,

signing an amending agreement on 9 November 2020.

The transaction was closed the following day, on 10 November 2020, against the payment of
Euro 1.7 million, including the transfer of the shateholders' loan by Alperia Greenpower Stl; it is

envisaged that this last component will be paid in five instalments falling due on 31 December

2020/2024.

On 10 June 2020, Alperia Greenpower Stl sold its 80% stake in the share capital of Selsolar
Rimini Stl to a third company for an amount of approximately Euro 3.55 million; on the same

date, Alpetia Spa transferred to the purchaser of the investment the shareholdets' loan granted

to Selsolatr Rimini for the residual amount of Euro 8.3 million.

As regards Ottana Solar Power, the extraordinary shareholders' meeting of this company resolved

- on 30 June 2020 - to transform the company from a joint stock company into a limited liability

company by adopting new Articles of association.

With regard to the latter company, Alpetria Greenpower Stl signed a preliminary purchase and
sale agreement with a third party company on 31 December 2020, for the sale of its 100% stake
in the share capital of the company in question; the agreement, which is subject to several

conditions precedent, also provides for the sale of the existing shareholders' loan to Alperia

Gteenpower Stl.

The transaction is expccted to be completed in the first half of 2021.
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With regard to PVB Power Bulgaria, on 9 December 2020, Alperia Spa, Dolomiti Eﬂqrgi'a
Holding Spa and Finest Spa signed a binding agreement with a major French energy group
operating in Bulgaria for the sale of the shares they held (57.92% in total) in the company's share
capital; the latter company owns five hydroelectric plants in Bulgaria on the river Iskar through
its subsidiaty Vez Svoghe.

The sale, which took place in early March 2021, also involved the fourth shareholder holding
the remaining 42.08% of PVB Power Bulgaria's share capital.

The valuation of 100% of the shares was based on an enterprise value of approximately Euro 48
million.

Finally, as regards Biopower Satdegna Stl, the Alpetia Group decided - after careful evaluation -
to no longer sell this wholly-owned company, but instead to verify the technical/economic

conditions for possibly continuing the activity even beyond April 2024 (expiry date of the current

incentives), following the convetsion/replacement of the engines with the use of other fuel (from
palm oil to gas).
As regards the acquisition of other shareholdings, see below.

Alperia Fiber Stl was involved - during the year under review - in two extraordinary operations

that are part of the wider project of the reotganisation of the Smart Region BU.

The first concerned the sale to Infranet Spa - on 17 April 2020 - of the business unit for the
management of FTTH fibte optic telecommunications infrastructure in the municipalities of
Sesto/Sexten, Chiusa/Klausen and Tirolo/Tirol. This unit includes, in patticular, passive

infrastructure (underground cables, hollow tubes, ODF cabinets, etc.) and related technological
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installations and systems. The price agreed between the partes, which will be paid by the

purchaser over several years, is approximately Euro 9.35 million.

In the same agreement, Alperia Fiber undertook to sign a contract to provide some setvices to

Infranet for the management of the data transport system.

The second transaction - which took place on 25 June 2020 - was for the sale to the parent
company, of the "Telecommunications” business unit, including the operation of the IoT

network based on LoRa technology and the management of wholesale services; this sale, which

also included seven employees, took effect on 1 July 2020.

The final consideration for the sale established by the parties in a specific agreement signed on

30 October 2020, determined on the basis of the half-yearly financial statements of Alperia Fiber,

was equal to approximately Euro 127,000.

As regards the aforementioned transaction with Infranet Spa, a business unit was also sold to this
company by Alperia Smart Services Stl on 17 April 2020. The sale relates to the group of assets
otganised for the start-up, development and sale of telecommunications setvices telating, in
particular, to wholesale, lamda and carrier ethernet services: the line of business comprises -
among other things - specialised billing software and contracts for the sale of telecommunicadons

services to Internet Service Provider customers. The price agreed between the partes is

approximately Euro 70,000.

Acquisition of Hydrodata and establishment of Alperia Innoveering

On 8 October 2020, Intecno Spa sold 50.51% of the shares of Hydrodata Spa to Alperia Spa.

Hydrodata Spa is a leading technical consulting company in Italy and has always been involved
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in the development and provision of engineeting, and technical/economic consulting setvices
and applied research in the field of water management. The acquisition, which involved an outlay

of Euro 2.2 million, is patt of initatives to support the achievemnent of the important objectives
set out in the Group's 2020-2024 strategic plan.

Hydrodata, founded in Turin in 1976, in its more than 40 years of history has acquired a position
of recognised leadership in the Italian market of engineering services associated with water
resources, with numerous experience also in the international arena. Hydrodata's value lies not
only in its consolidated network of relationships on a national scale, but also in the competence
and productive capacity of its team of professionals (most of whom are also shareholders in the
company), made up of specialists who have managed and developed, over the years, over 3,500

projects in support of otrganisations, utilities and private individuals mainly involved in water

management.
With this acquisition of considerable strategic value, Alpetia wanted to consolidate its internal
structure and know-how in the field of technical setvices, with numerous possibilities for
synergies and working together with Hydrodata, both in the development of its hydroelectric

assets in South Tyrol, and in the start of 2 new innovation and research project focused on water.

The partnership with Hydrodata will allow Alperia to participate in future tenders for the
reallocation of its hydroelectric concessions in South Tyrol with the support of a team of
professionals with considerable experience and expertise, capable of developing advanced and

innovative design solutions both from a technical and environmental sustainability perspective,
with undoubted benefits for the entire province.

Under the agreements, an innovation and research laboratory will also be set up in

Bolzano/Bozen, for the development of projects relating specifically to water resoutces, to be
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implemented also through cooperation at provincial level. The aim of this project is to put in
place the activities started some time ago by Alperia within the Smart Region project, with a new
R&D initative targeting the development of innovative Water 4.0 projects, with direct

applications both in the hydropower sector and in the more general water sector, with a particular

focus on issues of interest to businesses and institutions in South Tyrol.

In addition to the projects in partnership with Alperia, Hydrodata will continue to operate

independently on the national and international market, supporting organisations and opetatots

in the sectot.

A new company was then established on 19 November 2020: Alpetia Innoveering Stl, a joint
venture set up by Alperia and Hydrodata with a shareholding of 1% and 99% respectively. The
task of the newly founded company is to provide technical consultancy and design services for

Alperia Group companies; in addition to the operational headquarters in Turin, an office in

Bolzano/Bozen is also planned.
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On 3 July 2020, the Management Board of the parent company resolved to make a public

putchase offer on a voluntary basis for all ordinary shares of Gruppo Green Power Spa

(hereinafter GGP), a company with shares traded on the AIM Italia multilateral system organised

and managed by Borsa Italiana Spa.

"The purpose of the offer was to obtain the delisting of GGP's shares from the AIM. “Deliszing”).

This decision was the result of strategic and forward-looking assessments of GGP development

plans. Alperia believed that in the long term, development objectives could be more easily and
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effectively pursued with a narrow shareholder base, rather than with a broad shareholdes basg,

and in a context, such as that resulting from the loss of listed company status, charactetistd &gy

lower costs and greater managerial and otrganisational flexibility.

The offer concerned all the outstanding otdinaty shares net of those already owned by Alperia,
equal to 13.47% of GGP's share capital.

Alpetia committed to pay Euro 4.60 for each share purchased. The official price of GGP shares

recorded on 1 July 2020 (the last trading day priot to the announcement of the offer on which

GGP shares were traded) was Euro 4.49. The offer price therefore incorporated a premium of
approximately 2.45% over this price.

The offer acceptance petiod commenced on 6 July 2020 and ended on 31 July 2020 (inclusive);

as a result of the offer, Alperia's total investment in the share capital of GGP increased from

86.53% to 93.19%.

In light of the final results of the offer, the legal conditions to meet the purchase obligation
pursuant to Article 108, paragraph 2, of the TUF (Consolidated Law on Finance) were met, which

Alperia declared it would resort to in relation to the remaining shares equal to 6.81% of the share
capital of GGP.

In this case as well, Alperia committed to pay Euro 4.60 for each share purchased.

The period when Alperia fulfilled the aforementioned purchase obligation began on 31 August

2020 and ended on 25 September 2020 (inclusive); as a result of this procedure, Alperia came to

hold a total shareholding of 96.212% of GGP's shate capital.

As Alperia’s total shareholding in GGP's share capital exceeded 95% at the end of this procedure,

the conditions for the exercise of the purchase right pursuant to Article 111 of the TUF and the
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fulfilment of the purchase obligation pursuant to Article 108, paragraph 1, of the TUF were met

with reference to the outstanding ordinary shares of GGP not yet owned by Alperia reptesenting

3.788% of the share capital.

Through a joint procedure, Alperia therefore exercised the aforementioned putchase right and

simultaneously fulfilled the aforementioned purchase obligation; the consideration pet shate was

always Euro 4.60.

The joint procedure was completed with the transfer of ownership of all remaining shares to

Alpetia.

On 29 September 2020, Borsa Italiana ordered the delisting of GGP's shares from the AIM Italia

market, with effect from 5 October 2020, suspending the shares from trading for the sessions of

1 and 2 October 2020.

During the year under review, Alperia carried out some operations aimed at pursuing a greater

efficiency of GGP, statting a process of simplification and rationalisation.

Firstly, on 29 May 2020, GGP acquired 49.9% of the shate capital of Green Energy Group Stl

(which already held the remaining 50.1%).

The complex process of merging Green Energy Group Srl and Unix Group Stl into GGP was
then started; firstly, at an extraordinary shareholders’ meeting held on 27 October 2020, the latter
was converted from a public limited company into a limited liability company by adopting new
Artcles of association; subsequently, the shareholders' meetings of the companies involved, held
on 12 November 2020, approved the planned merger and on 23 December 2020, the merger

deed was signed by the chosen notary. The legal effects of the operation commenced on 1 January

2021.
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Finally, on 12 August 2020 a framework agreement was signed by Alperia Spa, GGP Holding S,
TRE-BI Stl and Green Power Energy Spa, under which the parties - taking into account the
mutual disputes as well as the negative economic situation and the effects that the health
emergency resulting from COVID-19 had had on GGP's business, as well as the above-
mentoned extraordinary transactions for the rationalization and simplification of the group - (i)
amended certain terms and conditions of the agreement signed in 2019 for the sale of the
investment equal to 71.88% of the share capital of GGP and (ii) defined an agreement for the

full settlement of their mutual claims.

According to the provisions of this agreement, on 24 September 2020, Alpetia Smart Services
Stl, as buyer, and Green Power Energy Spa, as seller, signed the deed to purchase the business
unit consisting of all the assets, liabilities, contracts and legal relations, both active and passive,
relating to the management of the sale of electricity and gas to 3,352 customers; the consideration
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agreed for the sale amounted to approximately Euro 147,000.

MuVen Project

As is known, this project concerns the establishment of the multi-utility company in Veneto,
which otiginally planned for (i) the merger between AGSM Spa of Verona and AIM Spa of
Vicenza and (ii) the search for an industrial partner to be included in the corporate structure of

MuVen that would ensure, with its contribution, the growth and future development of the latter.

In view of the news that appeated in the press as eatly as 2019 about possible extraordinary
transactions under considetation by AGSM and AIM, the parent company - at the end of

September 2019 - had sent to the latter, as well as to respective public members, an expression
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of interest, through which Alpetia had applied as the industrial partner of the entity resulting

from the merger.

Subsequently, having received no response to the above event and in the light of press reports
about the signing of a term sheet between AGSM, AIM and A2A Spa containing, among other
things, an exclusive rights period valid until the end of June 2020 to examine the operation,
Alperia requested - in January 2020 - a response from AGSM and AIM, with the intention of

further reviewing and discussing in more detail the expression of interest shown.

However, in the same month, AGSM and AIM replied to Alperia, stating that the expression of
interest received was inconsistent with the strategic and industrial choices, as well as with the
strategic development and market positioning objectives of the new entity resulting from the
merger of AGSM and AIM, and with the pursuit of the objectives and governance choices of

these companies.

On 19 May 2020, Alperia then received a letter of procedure sent by the two financial advisors
jointly appointed by AGSM and AIM, referring to a market survey aimed at verifying the non-
fungibility of the offer alrcady submitted by A2A and, possibly, identifying the industrial partner

of the mult-utility resulting from the merger between AGSM and AIM.

Specifically, Alperia was invited to submit to the latter, as wecll as to the relevant financial advisorts,
by12 June 2020 (subsequently postponed t019 June 2020) a non-binding offer for the creation
of a strategic partnership through a transaction providing, among others, for the conttibution of

assets that could significantly strengthen the positon of the company resulting from the

transaction.

In full compliance with the confidentiality obligations imposed on it and notwithstanding the
considerable doubts as to both the nature and purpose of the procedure initiated by AGSM and
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AIM and the short deadline for submitting the non-binding offer, Alperia therefore contacted
Dolomiti Enetgia Holding Spa - which also received the abovementioned letter of procedute -
in order to ascertain its interest in a possible joint participation in the market survey. Alperia and
Dolomiti Energia Holding then started discussions on the matter, at the end of which they came
to the decision to participate jointly in the above-mentioned market survey and, possibly, in the

transaction.

On 19 June 2020, Alpetia and Dolomiti Energia Holding, assisted by external consultants
appointed for this purpose, sent their non-binding offer with two different proposals, reserving
any right and/or interest to protect, as well as any action to take, also with reference to the
content of the letter of invitation, to the procedures for carrying out the market survey as well as

any event preliminary to and/or preceding the catrying out of the same procedure.

On 2 July 2020, Alperia and Dolomiti Energia Holding Stl received a letter sent by the two
financial advisors jointly appointed by AGSM and AIM, informing them of the extension of the
market sutvey activity aimed at verifying the non-fungibility of the offer already submitted by

A2A and, possibly, identifying the aforementioned partner.

Specifically, Alperia and Dolomiti Energia Holding Stl were invited to submit a revised non-
binding offer by 27 July 2020, containing an in-depth analysis of the ptevious offer sent in the
light of the expected discussions with AGSM and AIM, through their financial advisors, and of

the possibility of conducting due diligence on the same companies.

In response to this invitation, Alperia and Dolomiti Energia Holding sent the revised non-
binding offer on 27 July 2020, confirming their interest in the transaction under the same terms,

conditions and reservations contained in the offer sent on June 19, 2020.

37



Abperia $.p.4 — Consaliduted I'inancial St at 31 December 2020

Subsequently, in the light of the offers received, the assumed non-fungibility of A2A's offer was
ruled out, and the process to select the various candidates was stopped. At the time of writing,

this situation had not changed.

While the process of identifying a potential industrial partner came to a standsill, the process of
the merger between AGSM and AIM continued and the company "AGSM AIM Spa" became

operational on 1 January 2021.

Research, development and innovation

As is known, the Alperia Group has a strong focus on the development of innovative products
and services to offer to customers, in order to transition from a commodity-based model to a

setvice-based model.

During the year under review, the Innovation Board continued to monitor innovation projects
and organised dissemination events, also involving external expert speakers on relevant topics
(Blockchain, Circular Economy, Behavioural Efficiency, Lessons learned from other companies),

with the aim of strengthening a culture of collaboration and innovation.

In the first two months of 2020, with the assistance of an cxternal consulting firm, a project was
developed to define the business strategy and model for developing and launching "Smart City"
setvices, and the model and process for developing standard innovative products, that can be
replicated on a broad scale, identifying the necessary alignments for the Group in organisational

terms (processes and structures) and supporting tools.

A new decision-making committee was set up to screen and approve innovative projects for

development, with the entite process being coordinated by the Innovation Board Core Team;
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this team works with a number of experts selected from various Group companies foratiies

necessary support in evaluating individual projects.

In addition - as you may recall - after the success of the first edition, the second edition of "Alperia

Startup Factory" was launched - in October 2019 - with an even larger number of applicants

getting involved.

After a selection procedure of several stages, candidates with the most interesting projects were
invited to South Tyrol to take part in a two-day workshop at the “Innovation Camp”; in a second
stage - between February and June 2020 - the finalists worked on the actual development of the
prototype and conducted matket tests in view of the possible matketing of their product. The

four winners were given the chance to work with Alperia to implement the projects.

The thitd editdon of the 'Alperia Startup Factory' competition started on 28 September 2020; the
great novelty of this latest edition was that the Alperia Group's employees were also able to

present their projects.

The new competition tevolves around the following themes: District Heating 4.0, Innovative
Energy Products (Italian market), Hydropower efficiency, safety and sustainability, Smart region
solutions (Smart agriculture and Smart home for emergency), Flexible energy storage, IoT and

Al for energy efficiency.

In December 2020, during the Innovation Camp, the five finalist projects were identified, of
which two were presented by Alperia teams that will pardcipate in the final selections in May
2021. The teams have the opportunity to develop their work between February and May 2021

and the winners will have the chance to start working with Alperia to implement their projects

for the benefit of customers and companies alike. % - e
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As in the past, Alperia organised this third edition in association with the Univetsity of
Bolzano/Bozen and WhatAVenture, a young company that supports businesses in developing

Innovative projects.

In the R&D field, Alperia, in association with the University of Bolzano/Bozen, was awarded at
the beginning of December 2020 for a proposal in "Fusion Grant", an initiative cteated by the
Fondazione Cassa di Risparmio di Bolzano in partnership with NOI Techpark together with the
South Tyrol Business Association, Sidtiroler Wirtschaftsring-liconomia Alto Adige and the

South Tyrol Industry Association, Rete Economia Alto Adige-Wirtschaftsnetz.

The aim of this initiative 1s to support researchers under 40 who are engaged in scientific research

projects in South Tyrol to promote development and innovation in the local economy.

Alperia's project aimed to identify new methods to better understand the effects of sediment
transport on fauna, using innovative CFD (Computational Fluid Dynamics) simulation software,
a simulation technique that - with the help of mathematical formulas - simulates fluid flow and

heat transfer.

With this project Alperia wanted to reaffirm its focus on sustainability issues, as reflected by its

commitment to solving environmental problems in the areas where it operates.

Alperia Bartucci is also strongly committed to a continuous process of optimisation, innovation
and development of products and processes with the primary objective of achieving ever better

results from a technical and technological point of view to reduce greenhouse gas emissions.

As regards these research and development activities, the company channelled significant
investments into vatious projects, also in 2020, allowing it to make significant changes and

improvements to lines, production techniques and products.
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European Storage4Grid and Sinfonia projects

Still in the R&D field, 2020 saw the conclusion of two major European research projects, funded
by the European Commission under the FP7 and Hotizon2020 Framewotk Programmes for
Research and Innovation: the Storage4Grid project (December 2016 - February 2020) and the

Sinfonia project (June 2014 - July 2020).

The Storage4Grid project, on which Edyna, Neogy and Alpetia wotked, addressed the problems
of electricity grid stability and reliability, caused by the increasing amount of renewable enetgy,

the growing peak energy demand and, in the future, the massive penetration of electtic mobility.

During its more than three years of activity, the project developed concrete solutions to avoid ot
reduce the need to reinforce the electricity grid, inspited by the idea of distributing energy storage
systems (batteries) between end customers and the low-to-medium voltage grid, and coordinating

their use even in the presence of electric vehicles.

The solutions developed by Storage4Grid included a new ICT decision support framework for
service planning and optimisation, predictive control algotithms for real-time optimisation and

innovative energy metering and routing systems.

The Sinfonia research project, which involved the partners Alperia, Alperia Ecoplus, Eurac, the
Municipality of Bolzano/Bozen, IPES and the Energy Agency CasaClima-KlimaHouse over the
last six years in Bolzano/Bozen, was set up with the aim of changing the face of Bolzano/Bozen
in terms of enetgy efficiency and contributing to the transition towards a more sustainable and

stnart system by concretely lowering CO2 emissions.

In this process, district heating played a key role in a phase of considerable expansion of the

netwotk supplied by the Bolzano/Bozen waste-to-energy plant.
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Participation in this project enabled the development of intelligent software to better manage the
expanded network. The project revolved atound an innovative control system based on
additional measuring points along the pipes and a more efficient hydraulic and energy model of
the netwotk. This system allows real-time monitoring of heat production and disttibution,

predicting peak loads and optimising the operating temperature of the network.

Using this advanced control system, Bolzano/Bozen’s district heating can operate at maximum

distribution efficiency, reducing energy losses throughout the network by up to 5%.

The network’s expansion has enabled the Alperia Group to bring the benefits of district heating
to two residential complexes that have undergone energy efficient renovation thanks to Sinfonia
European funds; these two complexes are located in Via Similaun and Via Palermo in the Don

Bosco district of Bolzano/Bozen, and are owned by IPES.

IDEE Project

At the end of April 2020, the IDEE project "Data Integration for Energy Efficiency" was

presented.

The project, presented to representatives of the city of Merano/Meran (pilot municipality) by the
three partners who developed it (Alperia, R3GIS and the Faculty of Computer Science of the
University of Bolzano/Bozen), aims to develop an innovative digital tool capable of giving
conctete supportt to public administrations in defining energy efficiency strategies and in pursuing
environmental objectives, such as a reduction in energy consumption and greenhouse gas

emissions.
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Using innovative information technologies, the system will collect and integrate information,
including data on electricity, gas and district heating consumption, from various databases in a
structured way and make it easily accessible. This will enable local authorities to identify, for
example, particularly energy-consuming areas. So they may plan targeted actions or identify the
most suitable buildings for the installation of photovoltaic systems. In addition, the system will
be able to process the information by providing maps and charts, and compare data on a time

line, which is particulatly important for monitoting the results of actions taken.

The project, financed by the Autonomous Province of Bolzano/Bozen within the framework of

the European Regional Development Fund (ERDF), will go live in 2022 &‘ ' e A' AR mo
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As is known, two years ago Alperia and Regalgrid Furope, a leading company in the digital energy

sector, set up one of the first Italian Energy Communities at the NOI Techpark in

Bolzano/Bozen.

During 2020, confirmation came from a major independent research otganisation, Eurac
Research: the efficiency of the Energy Community formed by Alperia and Regalgrid had

exceeded expectations.

This first South Tytrolean "community" was made up of seven "consumers" and "prosumers"
(customers who not only consume energy, but also produce it) and connected the photovoltaic
system on the roof of the building with the consumers inside, who were equipped with inverters
and energy storage systems (batteries). The innovative technology used, patented by Regalgrid, is

based on special devices, which - in addition to connecting the entire system by transmitting
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energy data - are also able to activate the energy production and storage systems. Through an
algorithm developed by Regalgrid, the system analyses consumption profiles, "self-adjusting” and
optimising energy flows to make the best use of available energy. Thanks to a digital platform,
customers can monitor and manage the energy produced and consumed in real time, both at

individual customer and community level. The aim is to use as much self-gencrated cnergy as

possible within the community.

The first results of the study showed that the self-consumption of energy within the Alperia and
Regalgrid community is twice as high as in a situation where energy is not shared; this result is
even more surprising when compared to the current state of the art of energy communities:

energy sharing at the NOI Techpark has a 20% higher self-consumption of energy than reference

figures for the sector reported in the literature.

These results are highly encouraging for the Alperia Group, which relies on cutting-edge
technology with the aim of offering customers the best possible service and at the same time
making the best use of energy resources for greater environmental sustainability. The project

reflects the Group's efforts to revolutionise the energy sector so that it becomes increasingly

smatt, digital and efficient.

Restructuring of the digital - IT area and the digital transformation process

Alpetia Spa’s new Technology Department has been operative since 10 February 2020. The
Department brings together the technological expertise of Alpetia and its Information

Technology, Digitalisation and Teleconduction & Telecommunication functions.

The reasons behind this reorganisation are due, basically, to:
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new applicatons: the introduction of new applications making it necessary to identi
o pplications: the introduction of pplicat king it to identi

people in charge of managing the systems that are released,;

¢ new infrastructures: with the transition to the cloud, interaction with the outside world

has increased, and thus also the need to manage cyber security;

® new business models: the recent acquisitions of controlling interests in some companies

has called for the development of new skills and integration with Alperia's systems.

In the light of the results of the project aimed at drawing up the otganisation chart of the new
Department and the detailed processes, the newly created Technology Department was
reorganised on 15 May 2020, with the redistribution of certain activities and resources as well as
the creation and renaming of certain organisational areas; the Department was given the new

name of the Digital & Technology Department.

As part of the Digital Transformation progtamme, the SAP ERP Edyna, CRM Sales & Setvices
sites and Customer Interaction Channels were successfully released between July and August

2020, with positive results in terms of internal user and customer engagement.

The new ERP was subsequently extended to the entire Group at the beginning of January 2021,

with the aim of ensuting an improved ease of use and quicker execution.

The first release of the CRM site covered priority sales processes related to commodity products,

supporting the business through a greatet level of automation and new functionalities.

Regarding the Customer Interaction Channels, the new contract portal was redesigned and

implemented and the digital channel was integrated with the new CRM.
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Following these releases, analysis was catried out to further review the business requirements and
priorities for the next phases of the programme; these activities provided new evidence indicating

that the plan should be tedefined to better meet business needs in terms of content and timing

of future releases.

In this context, it should be noted that the new SAP IS-U billing system will be released in the

second quarter of 2021 and the implementation of CRM for all channels and processes will be

completed.

Along with Digital Transformation, activities for the integration of the New Businesses were

planned.

The new Data Protection & Security Department was set up within Alperia Spa, on 10 Februaty,
with the aim of having an otganisational structure that is independent of the operational
departments and responsible for defining internal directives on corporate data protection and I'T
secutity for Group companies. In addition to overseeing its own area of responsibility, the Data

Protection & Security Director also acts as Data Protection Officer (DPO ) for Group companies

where this position is required.

Talent management project and the leadership programme

After launching the first talent development programme in 2019, which materialised during 2020
and contained three modules on general topics (the role of women, Budget, Sales & Marketing),
while two more modules will be organised in February and March 2021 (Management &
Leadership and Strategy), the second edition of the Talent management project started on 1 July

2020, the aim is to select highly motivated employees with promising potential and train them
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appropriately, showing them development prospects and empowering them to use their talents

in the right place.

By the end of December 2020, the candidates had been assessed and selected - together with a
consulting company specialising in this area - and by February/March 2021, they were given

appropriate feedback. Their development programme was then planned, from March 2021.

For the so-called 'pillars’ of the Group, individual development measures will instead be

maintained and developed.

As regards the leadership programme, which involved all the Group's managers and key positions
in a number of workshops organised between November 2019 and May 2020 (which were
stopped due to bad weather in November 2019 and the Coronavirus in spring 2020), a working
group was set up in July 2020, consisting of one representative from each workshop, tasked with
producing concrete proposals, based on the results of these workshops. A large virtual wotkshop
was held on 11 November 2020, attended by all the Group's managers, to communicate the

tesults of the workshops and the first implementing measures arising from them.

Succession plans

In 2020, a succession plan was drawn up for the Group companies, with the aim of systematically
planning the exit of the Group’s key positions, identifying - for the individual functions - the
competencies required as well as the criticalities in terms of timing (based on the age of the
function owner), the impact of the position on the company's business as well as the difficulty of
finding a teplacement on the external or internal labour market. Besides identifying this

information, back-up was also included in these plans - for key positions - that can replace the
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function in case of unplanned absences. These succession plans, which need to be regularly

updated, are also a useful tool for setting out growth plans for both eligible employees and talent
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The number of accidents in 2020 remained stable compared to the previous year (14 accidents

in 2020).

The Alpetia Group maintains a high level of attention and involvement in occupational health
and safety issues; in fact, during the year in question, extraordinary initiatives were undertaken

for the COVID-19 emergency to provide greater protection for workers in addition to measures

provided for by law.

As regards certification, several Group companies renewed three-year certification during 2020

referred to 1SO 9001, 14001, 45001 and EMAS, and the companies Alperia Bartucci Spa, Alpetia

Fiber Stl and Neogy Stl completed the process to be certified to all ISO 9001, 14001 and 45001

schemes.

As already stated, a specific audit was voluntarily requested from an independent certification
body (IMQ), with the aim of providing employers of Group companies with feedback and an
assessment of the extent to which the prevention and protection measures against the
Coronavirus, provided for in the Protocol of 24 April 2020 signed between the Government and
social partners (supplementing the previous Protocol of 14 March 2020), adopted by the same

companies, had been implemented. The audits were conducted in July 2020 and the IMQ
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expressed a favourable opinion on the issue of certification "acwrding to the IMQ COF[D-19
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Restriction scheme".

Lastly, at the beginning of October 2020, Alperia Spa underwent its annual surveillance audit for
ISO/IEC 27001:2013 certification, conducted by IMQ/CSQ), which expressed a positive opinion
on the system implemented, thus confirming the certification for management conforming to

the standard for Information Technology and Teleconduction & Telecommunication of Alperia

for the year 2020/2021.

Cardano/Kardaun power station modernisation
In January 2020, Alperia Greenpower Stl started work on the partial refurbishment of the
Cardano/Kardaun hydroelectric power plant.

The plant, which went into operation in 1929, had not undetgone any major renovation work
during its long service. It was therefore necessaty to install more efficient machinery in order to
guarantee a significant production of renewable energy also in the future, with a higher degree of

reliability, better environmental compatibility and lower operating and maintenance costs.

The activities were planned and are being supervised by the Engineering & Consulting
department of Alperia Spa and entail the complete replacement of four turbine units as well as
all command and control equipment and auxiliary systems; on the fifth unit, for which a
“standby" service is planned (a spare machine, to be brought into service when needed),

extraordinary maintenance will be carried out. New power transformers have already been

installed.
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With an investment of almost EUR 30 million, an increase in production of around 5% is

expected.

The plant in question, with its 620 GWh of average annual production, makes an important
contribution to the Alperia Group's hydroelectric production. For this reason, energy production

will not stop during the construction period, thanks to careful seasonal management of the

unavailability of the replacement units.

The main activities are scheduled to be completed by 2022,

Installation of new second-generation electricity meters

With Resolution no. 259/2020/R /eel of 7 July 2020, ARERA approved the commissioning plan

for the 2G smart metering system of Edyna Stlin 2019, subsequently updated on 14 April 2020.

In the same resolution, ARERA set the start-up date for the Edyna plan for 1 January 2020 and

gave the go ahead for investments relating to this system to be included in the specific regime

recognising capital expenditure from the same date.
Edyna's updated plan includes:

¢ the mass installation of new meters, to be carried out over five years starting in 2020 and

ending in 2024, peaking in 2023, with the number of metets to be installed in 2020

significantly lower than installations in the remaining four years;

the commissioning of more than 312,000 2G meters over the 15-year period of the plan
(2020 - 2034), representing the entire regulatory life cycle of the investments (from 2025

onwards, activity will be limited to new installations related to user and fault management);
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® 2 projected capital expenditure, over the 15-year period, of just under Euro 41 million,

expressed in constant prices and 2019 cutrency.

The first installations began in September 2020 in the municipality of Egna/Neumarkt, followed
by the municipality of Ora/Auer from Octobet and the municipality of Caldaro/Kaltern from

Decembet.

New partnership between Alperia Smart Services and Cassa di Risparmio di Bolzano-

Sparkasse Bozen

In early February 2020, Alperia Smart Services Stl and Cassa di Risparmio di Bolzano-Spatkasse
Bozen presented an important partnership to the public: the new agreement gives domestic
customers with an active supply (i) on the protected market or (i) with another supplier, the
chance to take up Alperia's offer on the free market of clean electricity from tenewable sources
and certified "green" gas, directly at one of the 105 branches of the Bank Cassa di Risparmio di

Bolzano-Sparkasse Bozen in the Triveneto area.

The Bank's extensive network of branches will enable the Alperia Group to be even closer to

and easy to reach by customets.

The synergies involved thanks to this new business partnership are based on common values of

sustainability and a focus on customets.
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Based on the provisions of the new commercial plan referring to the three-year period 2020 -
2022, approved in September 2019 by the Board of Directors of Alperia Smart Services Stl, three
new Alperia stores were inaugurated in shopping centres at Treviso - the "Tiziano" Centre
(opening on 1 July 2020), Venice - the "Nave de Vero" Centre (opening on 3 September 2020)
and Padua - the "Ipercity” Centre (opening on 5 September 2020); these are the first cotner store
outlets, outside the Alperia Group’s traditional reference area, and will be joined by a further 3

new corner stores located in the most important shopping centtes in the north east.

The corner stores should have opened eatliet, but - due to the epidemiological emergency from

COVID-19 - it was decided to extend their opening with the adoption of all necessary security

measures.

In addition, the corner store at the Twenty shopping centre in Bolzano/Bozen was fully

tenovated and restyled in July 2020 to align it with the new sales concept.

Lastly, on 26 October 2020 an Alperia Flagship Store was opened in Vicenza in a common area
where there is also a branch of the Cassa di Risparmio di Bolzano/Spatkasse Bozen. This shared
cnvironment offers customers two types of services - encrgy and financial - giving them the
chance to consult advisors of the two companies. This operation represents an important and

further step forwards in the business partnership launched at the beginning of the year, referred

to above.

New agreements and commercial acknowledgments

At the beginning of September 2020, Alpetia Smart Services Stl, the South Tyrol business

association Sudtiroler Wirtschaftsring-Heconomia Alto  Adige, the hoteliers association
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Associazione Albergatori-Hoteliers- und Gastwirteverband, the business association
Confartigianato Imprese-Wirtschaftsverband Handwerk und Dienstleister, the business and
tourism association for South Tyrol Unione Commercio Turismo Servizi Alto Adige-Handel und
Dienstleistungsverband Stidtirol, the union of farmers and direct growers of South Tyrol Unione
Agricoltoti e Coltivatori Diretti Sudtirolesi-Sudtiroler Bauernbund, the South Tyrol association
of businesses Assoimprenditoti-Untetnehmensverband Siidtirol and the South Tyrol association
of freelancers Associazione dei liberi professionisti-Vereinigung Siidtiroler Freiberufler signed a
new framework agreement for the supply of natural gas. This agreement, which covers the period
1.10.2020 - 31.12.2022 (renewable for a further yeat), guarantees advantageous economic

conditions for South Tyrol companies that belong to the aforementioned associations.

A similar framework agreement was signed between the aforementioned parties at the end of
2019 for the supply of electricity in the two-year period 2020/2021 (renewable for a further two

years).

Another commercial agreement was signed, at the beginning of September 2020, by Alperia Spa,
Alperia Bartucci Spa and Green Power Spa Group with the business associations lvh.apa
Confartigianato  Imprese-Wirtschaftsvetband Handwerk wund Diensleister and ARO
Consorzio/Konsotiutm. Under this agreement, the Alperia Group, in association with the
network of local artisan businesses, offers a tailor-made solution in South Tyrol for the
“Superbonus 110%” granted for energy efficiency works, encouraging families and
condominiums to benefit from this tax break and help reduce the consumption of energy from

fossil sources and improve climate protection.

Two important awards obtained by the Alperia Group should also be mentioned. The first was

in the International Charge Energy Branding Award 2020, where Alperia won the "Best Green
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Brand " category, excelling among energy companies from the United States, Norway and

Germany.
Each year, the Charge Energy Branding Award honours excellence in brand management and
communication. The jury is made up of independent, globally active experts from branding

agencies, consulting firms, universities and the marketing industry. In 2020 the award ceremony

took place as a virtual online event during the conference held in Iceland.
The second award was from Altroconsumo, Italy’s largest consumet protection association.

Altroconsumo reviewed twenty-one enetgy suppliers, analysing the quality and transparency of
contracts, complaints’ management and other aspects relating to customer satisfaction. Based on

a system of awarding points, the various criteria evaluated contributed to determining the overall
quality of the setvice provided. In Altroconumo’s ranking of electricity suppliers, Alperia came

first place and was officially given the title of “Recommended Provider”.

These awards represent an important confirmation for the Group’s roadmap, with Alperia as a

supplier of green, sustainable energy services, whose primary values are transpatency and

customer satisfaction.

International expansion in the gas sector

Alperia Trading Stl achieved an important result in 2020, in its international expansion in the gas
scctor. With its first transactons at the start of October, the company has been active on EEX

(European Energy Exchange), the European stock exchange to access all European markets for

the procurement of commodities.
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In addition, the environmental focus characterising all the Group's activities is being furth
developed in the gas sector, where Alperia Trading has registered with VERRA, the most

important platform worldwide for the accreditation of CO2 emission reduction projects.

Thanks to these two initiatives, gas has acquired a growing role for Alperia Trading and the

VRl i i

company is a fully qualified international operator in this sector.
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District heating
District heating in Bolzano/Bozen is constantly developing: in 2020 the areas of Gries-via Roen-
Piazza Mazzini were reached, the loop on via Rovigo was completed and the network up to the
Lido-Via Firenze area was built.

More than 15 MW have been connected and at least as many are planned for 2021, the year when

buildings will be connected in the areas setved and the network will be extended towards via

Vetdi and via Alto Adige.

The design of the new cogeneration plant setving the netwotk and Bolzano/Bozen Hospital was
continued (the related PPP project was presented in February 2021 to the South Tyrol Health
Authority Azienda Sanitaria dell’Alto Adige-Sidtiroler Sanititsbetrieb and to the Agency for
procedures and supervision of public contracts for works, services and supplies of the

Autonomous Province of Bolzano/Bozen) and the design of the SEU Infranet plant was

completed, with construction starting in the current year.
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There was steady growth in the Merano/Meran district heating system in 2020 (17 new buildings),
and this will continuc in the next few years, thanks above all to the new biomass plant that will

come into operation in 2021.

The same positive ttend was reported for the Sesto/Sexten and Chiusa/Klausen district heating
systems: here too new connections have been made, confirming the local community’s interest

in the service offered by Alpetia Ecoplus Stl.

Two important projects were also completed in 2020 for the district heating of Chiusa/Klausen
(new 140 kW cogenerator and generator) and Sesto/Sexten (fire prevention work and duplication

of the electrostatic separator) and the related works will be carried out in 2021,

Lastly, it should be noted that in 2020 the ptimary energy emission factors for all district heating

systemns were certified.

Alperia Bartucci and Relabs together in real estate

In December 2020, Alperia Bartucci Spa and the company Relabs Stl based in Rome signed a
partnership agreement with the main objective of identifying and selecting, by mutual agreement
following the joint activity of the parties, interested third parties to whom they can propose and
provide advanced technological solutions, digital platforms and business models based on
blockchain and artificial intelligence fot the real estate sector and construction industry including
Sybil, as well as energy and/or seismic redevelopment wotk consistent with the business model
of the BES (Building Efficiency Solutions) unit, in all its forms (such as efficiency measures

through credit transfer, invoice discounts, plant management, operation and maintenance).
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The objective of the partnership is to ensure greater transparency and better efficiency in real

estate management, making it possible to teduce costs.

In patticular, while Alperia Bartucci has the task of proposing solutions based on artificial
intelligence systems for the optimization of building air conditioning and consumption
monitoring, Relabs deals with solutions based on blockchain technology specific for the sector,
making it possible to validate documents, make information and data unchangeable and

transpatrent and trace materials and components to facilitate the transition to a circular economy.

Sustainable mobility

In 2019, Alperia gave a survey to its staff, to find out about their habits, needs and expectations
concerning home/work mobility. In July 2020, on the basis of the information gathered and

suggestions made, the following initiatives were launched by the Group:

e renewal of the company fleet of electric bicycles;

e sctting up of charging stations for electric bicycles;

e amobile workshop setvice and installation of stations for the maintenance of employees'
ptivate bicycles;

o reserved parking spaces for charging employees' ptivate electric cars.

On the subject of sustainable mobility, the "Smart Mobility Report 2020" was presented by the
Energy & Strategy Group of Milan Polytechnic at the end of October 2020, showing that

Trentino-South Tyrol is the Italian region where electric mobility is the most widespread, thanks
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to the highest figure in Italy for recharging stations and number of electric vehicles per inhabitant.
This important result has been achieved thanks not only to public support measures of the two
Autonomous Provinces for the purchase and rental of electric vehicles and installation of
charging stations, but also to the initiatives carried out with conviction by the Alperia Group and

by the Dolomiti Energja group through the subsidiary Neogy Stl.

Regarding the latter, Neogy Stl, in pattnetship with ARO Consorzio/Konsortium, won the
public tender called by STA (Alto Adige Transport Company) in 2020, for the supply, installation
and management for 9.5 years of 33 Hyperchargers (100-150 kW) to be installed in South Tyrol

in the 2021-2022 period.

Subsequent events
End of the electricity protection service for small businesses

The gradual compulsory transition from the enhanced protection service to the free electricity

matket for small businesses (approximately 200,000) began on 1 January 2021.

After extensive consultation with stakeholders, ARERA introduced - with Resolution no.
491/2020/R/eel of 24 November 2020 - the so-called gradual protection service for small
businesses that have not yet chosen a free market seller in 2021; this service guarantees continuity

of supply and gives customers the time to choose the most suitable offer for their needs.

The service is for companies owning low voltage connected withdrawal points that meet the EU
definition of being a small enterprise (having between 10 and 50 employees and an annual
turnover of between Euro 2 and Euro 10 million) and for micro-enterprises having a withdrawal

point with a contractually committed capacity of more than 15 kW.
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As from 1 January 2021, the companies concetned switched automatically and temporatily,

without interruption of supply, to the gradual protection service.

In the period from 1 January 2021 to 30 June 2021, users are temporarily assigned to the enhanced
protecton supplier that already serves the customer, with contractual conditions coinciding with

those of existing PLACET offers (Free Price Contracts with Equal Protection Conditions).

In this first phase, the price is similar to that of the enhanced protection setvice which, for the
part of the expenditure relating to energy, contnues to reflect the changes in the price of
electricity in the wholesale market based on the final values of the PUN. All othet components

of the bill will still be set by ARERA.

Full allocation will come into effect after 1 July 2021, and the gradual protection service will be
provided by operators selected through specific competitive procedures (tepeated after three

years) at a local level, with the contractual conditions of PLACET offers.

‘The economic conditions relating to energy expenditute will continue to be based on actual PUN
values, as in the provisional allocation, and will include amounts to cover other supply and

marketing costs, with a portion defined on the basis of the results of the tender.

On 29 January 2021, the Single Buyer published the regulations governing the above-mentioned
competitive procedures for the assignment of the gradual protection service. The purpose of the
competitive procedures is to identify, for each of the territorial areas, the gradual protection

service operators that will guarantee the service from 1 July 2021 until 30 June 2024.

Nine tertitorial areas have been identified: 1) Puglia, Tuscany; 2) Lazio; 3) Lombardy, excluding

the municipality of Milan; 4) Piedmont, Emilia-Romagna; 5) Municipality of Milan, Friuli-Venezia

P YT

Minlsiero .cl-_\l;l'F.connmin
LA erd

MARCA DA BOLLD

59

%tl]l][]?% DGDDB ISZ

~(008 16 BZOEA4L: 55h
RILFICATIVD : %1%!]0;512?5745

i

F
¢
Q f&“ﬁi SEDICUﬂﬂ-
\‘ ' ¥ ntrate
HUUSUU[H
S~
k;



Albperia Sp.A — Consobduted Vinanial S (s at 31 Devernber 2020)

Giulia, Valle d'Aosta; 6) Veneto, Liguria, Trentino-Souty Tytol; 7) Campania, Marche; 8) Umbria,

Abtuzzo, Molise, Basilicata, Calabria; 9) Sicily, Sardinia.

Lastly, it should be noted that the enhanced protection service for households and
microbusinesses with power withdrawal points below or equal to 15 kW has been extended until
the beginning of 2023 by Law 21 of 26 Febtuary 2021, converting Dectee Law 183/2020 (the

"Thousand Extensions Dectee").

National Recovery and Resilience Plan

At its meeting of 12 January 2021, the Council of Ministets apptoved the PNRR proposal,
referred to earlier, which then passed to the Chamber of Deputies and the Senate of the Republic

for their assessments.

The Plan is divided into the following six missions, which represent structural 'thematic areas’ of
intervention (in brackets the resoutces allocated to each area for a total of approximately Euro

211 billion):

e green revolution and ecological transition (Euro 67.5 billion);

e digitisation, innovation, competitivencss and culture (Euro 45.5 billion);
e infrastructure for sustainable mobility (Euro 32.0 billion);

¢ education and research (Euro 26.5 billion),

e inclusion and cohesion (Euro 21.3 billion);

® health (Euro 18.0 billion).

The above amount of approximately Euro 211 billion added to the resources of the React EU

programme of Euro 13 billion comes to a total of Euro 224 billion available to Italy.
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The first 70% of the grants will be committed by the end of 2022 and spent by the end of 2023,

while the remaining 30% will be spent between 2023 and 2025.

In the first three years, most investments and new projects will be suppotrted by grants; from

2024 to 2026, the largest share of resources will instead come from loans.

Utilitalia, with the contribution also of the Alperia Group, prepared a document for the definition
of the PNRR, with activities that could be included in the Plan amounting to approximately Euro

25 billion, covering the watet, energy, envitonment and digital sectots.

Extension of the state of emergency following COVID-19

By tesolution of 13 January 2021, the Council of Ministers further extended the state of

emetrgency until 30 April 2021.

On 2 December 2020, the Minister of Health presented the guidelines of Italy's Strategic Plan

for Vaccination against COVID-19 to parliament.

The goal of the vaccination campaign is to achieve herd immunity for COVID-19 as soon as
possible. The campaign started on 27 December 2020, following the approval of the first vaccine
by the EMA (Eutopean Medicines Agency). After an initial phase, the campaign is steadily going
ahead, albeit with various difficulties telated to delays in the delivery of doses. Vaccines are
offered to the entire population, according to an order of priority, which takes into account the

risk of disease, the types of vaccine and their availability.

61



Abpersa S.p.A — Consolidted Fipancial Stasements al 31 December 2020

In view of the pandemic continuing in the current year with all the negative consequences that
this entails, the Alperia Group has decided to once again grant a moratorium on the payment of
electricity and gas bills for South Tyrolean companies that have an Alperia offer on the free
market; in particular, the due dates for bills for January, February and March 2021 have been

postponed to September, October and November 2021 respectively.

In the case of domestic customers on the free market who are resident in South Tytol and who,
in the petriod from mid-November 2020 to March 2021, were unemployed or laid off by their
employer without teceiving a 100% wage supplement from the employer or who worked in 2019
and/or 2020 under a seasonal contract as an employee and who, between the aforementioned
petiod from mid-November 2020 to March 2021, were unable to work, a one-off rebate of Euro

50 will be given on an electricity bill.

Agreement between the Province of Bolzano/Bozen — CasaClima-KlimaHaus - GSE for

the energy transition

The Province of Bolzano/Bozen, together with the South Tyrol Energy Agency CasaClima-
Klimahaus and the Energy Services Operator GSL, signed 2 memorandum of understanding in
January 2021 for a three-year collaboration with the aim of promoting the energy efficiency of

existing buildings, both public and private, and the use of renewable sources.

The intent is to contribute to achieving - through joint actions - the sustainability targets to
implement the South Tyrol 2050 cnergy climate strategy at local level, and in general the
Integrated National Energy and Climate Plan (PNIEC), starting with the trial of a2 model aimed

at promoting the energy transition.
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With this memorandum, the parties have committed to jointly initiating actions and usifg
operational tools to ensure municipalities in South Tyrol have a tetritorial model suitable for
adopting policies in favour of energy efficiency, renewable energy sources, sustainability and

innovation.

Confirmation of Alperia rating’s as BBB/stable

On 12 February 2021, the rating agency Fitch confirmed the long-term rating of Alpetia Spa as

BBB, with a “stable” outlook.

The confirmation of the rating takes into account the new One Vision 2020-24 business plan
(previously) and is a further demonstration that, albeit in an uncertain economic and health
context and with extremely volatile current prices, a strategic focus, business development in the
direction of the energy transition and a growing attention to customer needs will all put Alperia

on the right path.

Alperia is rated on a “standalone” basis, but the presence of the key shareholder, the Autonomous
P ; P y "

Province of Bolzano/Bozen, is considered positive for the Group's overall business profile.

Neogy - electric mobility agreement signed

Towards mid-February 2021, Neogy St signed a term sheet with an important national player in
the energy sectot, referring to a possible partnership aimed at developing a wide-ranging project
in the electric mobility sector. Based on the proposed partnership, Neogy Stl will become an
exclusive vehicle in the future for management services, the development of the technological

platform for the management of the charging infrastructures, as well as a technical call centre.
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The first step in the project - aimed at defining the financial, strategic and legal/regulatory aspects

- will be finalised more or less by 30 April 2021.

New website

The new website www.alpetia.eu has been online since 1 March 2021: the site, developed as part
of the digitization project and capable of tesponding to the needs of all customers, stars alongside
the group site www.alperiagroup.eu, presenting all the most important company contents as well

as the services and products available to customers. The new online subscription process also

allows all customers in Italy to sign an electricity or gas contract with Alperia.

Engaging, seamless and created with a view to increasing the conversion rate and Group's
customer base, the new web interface integrates and enhances the acquisition funnel expetience,
laying the foundations for a new digital identity of Alperia. The new project aims to define a new

expetience fot customers, in which the brand's mission and vision enhance the services offered
',
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Litigation and contingent iabiliies - U

With respect to the disputes and potential liabilities reported in the consolidated financial

staternents at 31 December 2019, the following should be noted.

Contingent liabilities in relation to corporate transactions
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With regard to the dispute between the Parent Company and Edison Spa (Edison), the latter —
see comments in previous financial statements — filed claims with Alperia Spa at the end of 2016
for a contract signed on 25 January 2016 for the purchase and sale of shares in Cellina Energy
Stl (as later amended and supplemented by the addendum dated 31 May 2016), in connection
with alleged liabilities concerning plants owned by Cellina Energy Stl; Alpetia promptly replied
and challenged those claims, but prudently set aside a special risk provision for a part of the

claims.

In response to the above claims, Alperia Spa — in turn — filed claims for compensation against
A2A Spa (A2A), alleging liabilities — almost entitely the same as those reported by Edison —
incurred in connection with the same plants covered by the framework agreement entered into
on 26 October 2015 between SEL Spa (now Alperia Spa) and A2A and, as far as their respective
ateas of responsibility are concerned, between Cellina Energy Spa and Edipower Spa. These

claims were identified and disputed by A2A under the terms of the framework agreement.

As regards the payment by Edison of the residual price for the sale of Cellina Enetgy Stl (Euro
25 million — Deferred Price Guarantee), Alperia Spa collected the payment of approximately
Euro 19.3 million from Edison in July 2017; the latter partially offset the aforesaid amount of
Euro 25 million with the amount — in its opinion — due to it for the aforesaid alleged liabilities
relative to the Cellina plants. Although Alperia Spa does not accept the above liabilities, they had
already been taken into account, on a prudential basis, in the preparation of the financial

statements at 31 December 2016.

With a request for arbitration (and the concurrent appointment of an arbitrator) filed with the
Milan Chamber of Arbitration on 27 July 2018, Edison requested that Alperia Spa be ordered to

pay the amount of Euro 27 million allegedly due as "compensation" under the guarantees
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provided by the contract (however, Euro 5.743 million must be deducted from this amount,
which Edison has already deducted from the amount due and paid to Alpetia, as the price at
which it purchased and sold the shares in Cellina Energy Stl). Alperia Spa joined the proceedings,
contesting in full, both the merit of the petition and the amount of damages claimed by Edison,
and, in tutn, counterclaiming that Edison be ordered to pay the amount due as an adjustment to

the base price pursuant to the contract.

At the first hearing on 28 January 2019, the Court of Arbitration, with the agreement of the
parties, granted the parties successive time limits for the filing of rejoinders, setting the hearing
for 24 July 2019 for the personal appearance of the parties, attempted mediation and any

settlement.

With its fitst brief, Edison reviewed its claim to a total of Euto 23.299 million, besides Euro
5.743 million already held as compensation, specifying its claim in relation to each grievance.
Alperia Spa filed its rejoindet, in order to specifically state its objections and relative preliminary
statements for each single grievance raised by Edison and therefore to further contest Edison's
assumptions concerning alleged breaches of contract obligations and guarantees, challenging
further claims put by Edison and filing its own countetclaim. Respective rejoinders and
replications were then filed, within the deadlines indicated, with amendments and additions to

the issues and petitions, and preliminary statements and briefs.

On the heating of 24 July 2019, the Court of Arbitration granted, for the applications filed by the
parties, a deadline up to 31 October 2019 to start possible settlement proceedings and, in the
event of a negative outcome to the attempted settlement, or in the absence thereof, to file
preliminary briefs, granting the parties a second deadline, up to 2 December 2019, to file

rejoinders and replications. After upholding the joint application filed by the patties, based on
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pending talks, the Court of Arbitration further extended the above deadlines to 15 Noy

e

2019 and to 17 December 2019 respectively.

By order of 14 April 2020, the Court of Arbitration ordered an expert witness report (CTU),
formulating the related questions. The Court of Arbitration granted the parties a deadline for
submitting theit observations on the questions of the expert witness, also inviting them by 30
June 2020, postponed to 14 July 2020, to verify the possibility of jointly selecting the expert
witness, reserving the right to take appropriate measures on the outcome. The aforementioned
observations were discussed at the hearing on September 14, 2020, after which the Board, having
found that it had not been possible to reach an agreement between the parties on the joint
appointment of the expert witness, reserved both the definitive wording of the questions of the

technical consultancy, and the appointment of the expert witness.

By order of 4 December 2020, the Board defined the technical consultancy questions and
appointed the expert witness, subject to the appointment also of the accounting/ company expert
witness, setting a hearing for the acceptance of the engagement and start of the expert’s activities.
At the hearing of 22 January 2021, the expert witness accepted the engagement, with a deadline

of 30 September 2021 for filing the expert report.

By order of 18 February 2021, the Board accepted the request for the appointment of a technical
accounting expert in order to assist the already appointed expert witness, in relation to the
questions assigned, in the assessment of the economic and financial implications detiving from
the technical analysis, setting a hearing for 30 March 2021 for the acceptance of the assignment

by the technical accounting expert and for establishing the start of the expert’s activities.

The deadline for filing the award has been extended to 30 March 2022. L “\nmﬁm gq 5“”&8
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With reference to the above-mentioned request for arbitration of 27 July 2018, on the basis of
the assessments made by the ptimary law firm that assists Alpetia Spa in the case in question, it

is not considered necessary to supplement the provision already present in the financial

statements.

Tax Disputes

With regatd to the appeal filed by the Revenue Agency before the Supteme Court of Cassation
against Decision No. 73/2016 of the Second Level Tax Commission of Bolzano/Bozen, rejecting
the appeal filed by the Revenue Agency against the favourable decision at first instance No.
141/02/2014 concerning the notice of rectification and payment of commensurate registration,
mortgage and cadastral taxes dated 17/12/2013 (for an amount of Euro 3,167,398 plus interest),

in respect of which Alpetia Spa and Edyna Stl have filed a countetclaim with contingent cross-

appeal, as has E-Distribuzione Spa, the following is reported.

On the outcome of the hearing set for 13 January 2021, with an interlocutory order filed on 4
March 2021, the Court of Cassation adjourned the case to a new role pending the decision of the
Constitutional Court on the question of constitutional legitimacy raised by the Provincial Tax
Commission of Bologna regarding the retroactive non-applicability, among other things, of

Atticle 20 of Presidential Dectee 131 of 26 April 1986, as amended by Law 205 of 27 December

2017.

In this regard, it should be noted that in ruling no. 39 of 16 March 2021, the Constitutional Court
declared the questions of constitutional legitimacy raised by the Provincial Tax Commission of

Bologna to be unfounded. The company is therefore waiting for a new hearing to deal with the
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case, assured by previous favourable case law and by changes in the legal framework pendisig theg,

ruling.

As regards council taxes and property taxes, after the proposed actions by Alperia Spa and Alpetia
Greenpower Stl, concerning SE Hydropower Sl and the incoming Hydros Srl, against notices
of assessment for higher taxes with regard to the cadastral registration of hydroelecttic plants, a
settlement has alteady been reached for the disputes with several municipalities concerned
(Bressanone /Btixen, Velturno/Feldthurns, Brunico/Bruneck, Bolzano/Bozen,
Chiusa/Klausen, Lagundo/Algund, Rasun Anterselva/Rasen Antholz, Valdaora/Olang,
Villandto/Villanders, Naz Sciaves/Natz-Schabs, Perca/Percha, Predoi/Prettau, Renon/Ritten,
Rio di Pusteria/Miihlbach, Rodengo/Rodeneck, San Candido/Innichen, Sesto/Sexten, Selva di
Val Gatrdena/Wolkenstein in Gréden, Selva dei Molini/Miihlwald, Senales/Schnalstal, Botgata
Campo Tures/Sand in Taufers, Sarentino/Sarntal and Ponte Gardena/Waidbruck). The
negotiations started for settlement agreements with the municipalities of Castelrotto/Kastelruth

and Batbiano/Barbian by Alpetia Greenpower S1l still have to be defined.

As regards regional business tax IRAP), Alperia Greenpower Stl received a notice of assessment
for the 2014 tax year, on 23 December 2019. The Bolzano/Bozen tax office has challenged the
failure to apply the higher IRAP rate provided for in Article 16(1-bis)(a) of Legislative Decree
446/1997 for "entities operating as concessionaite businesses” and the deduction of personnel
costs, in alleged breach of Article 11(1)(a) of Legislative Decree 446/1997, which for IRAP
purposes was excluded until 2014 for "businesses operating under concession and at tariffs" in
certain sectors, resulting in an assessment of higher tax due of Euro 1,183,584.00 and related

administrative penalties of Euro 1,065,226.00.
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Alpetia Greenpower Stl appealed, within the deadlines granted (appeal 87/2020) before the First
Instance Tax Commission of Bolzano/Bozen, First Section, requesting the cancellation, subject
to the suspension, of the contested assessment notice for 2014, fully disputing the reasons given

by the Tax Authorities.

By order no. 122/2020, the Board, considering that the legal requirements had been met, ordered
the suspension of the enforcement of the contested act and set the hearing on the merits for 22

March 2021.

Alperia Greenpower St filed its own briefs within the time limits and requested that the case be

heard in open court.
At the outcome of the hearing held on 22 March 2021, judgment is pending.

Based on studies also carried out through two leading consulting firms, and considering that the
arguments put by Alperia Greenpower Stl ate based on solid assumptions, and that the
application of the ordinary rate to the free market production of electricity (including hydropower
production) practised by Alperia Greenpower Stl, rather than the increased rate, is shared by
other leading sector operators, the risk of losing the case in question is considered as possible
and not likely. For this reason, it has not been considered necessary at present to allocate specific
provisions for risks. Alperia Greenpower Stl has allocated the best estimate of legal fees that it

expects to pay in the proceedings to the provision for charges.

As regards taxation, an important issue that is still ongoing is the provincial additional tax on
excise duties for electricity (Provincial Surtax). At national level, in fact, various electricity sales
companies have received numerous requests from their customers, since the end of 2019, for the

reimbursement of the Provincial surtax applied and paid until its abolition on 1 Apzil 2012.
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This matter is due to the distuptive effects of some rulings of the Court of Cassation issued
between the end of 2019 and the beginning of 2020, as a tesult of judgments concerning end
clients and the Customs’ Agency, according to which the additional tax, which had been repealed
- late - by the Ttalian legislator, as from 1 April 2012, should actually have "not been applied”

from an EU perspective, from the time when the EU directive on excise duties came into force.

Possible claims for the return of sums paid as the Additional Provincial Tax by consumers for
the years 2010 and 2011, which sales companies, including Alpetia Smart Services Stl and Alperia
Sum Spa, simply charged their customers, which wete then paid in full to the competent
Administration (Customs Agency or Provinces), state that the legislation is not aligned with the
rights of the sales companies to claim reimbursement in tutn against the actual beneficiaty of the
Provincial Tax, i.e. the Customs” Agency or Provinces. At present, the sales companies ate forced,
in order not to be affected themselves, to not reimburse amounts requested and to wait for the
outcome of the disputes, initiated or still to be initiated for the repayment of this alleged undue
payment, with the pronouncement of rulings against them. Only after the rulings against the sales

companies have become final will they be able to exercise their tight to reimbursement against

the tax authorities.

In the light of the first unfavourable rulings against the sales companies, it is hoped that an
interpretation/solution to regulatory aspects will be identified, also through trade associations,
which have been active since 2020 to support the sellers and interact with the authorities, in order
to avoid numerous disputes, while protecting the rights of all parties involved and avoiding
consequent costs, SO as to mitigate a possible strong, as well as unfair, financial imbalance for

sellers, since it is not possible to exclude a delay in their receiving a final reimbursement from the
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At present, in view of the above, it is not consideted necessaty to set up a specific provision in

the financial statements of the Group's sales companies.

Other disputes

As regards the production sector, the following is reported.

With reference to Alpetia Greenpower Stl, it should be mentioned that at the end of an open
procedure for the award of a contract to replace the penstock at the Lasa/Laas hydroelectric
plant, the second-ranked company filed an appeal with interim relief, under Case no. 12/2021
before the Court of Administrative Justice, Autonomous Section of Bolzano/Bozen (TRGA of
Bolzano/Bozen). By order no. 15/2021, the TRGA of Bolzano/Bozen - not deeming there to
be sufficient fumus boni inris for the requested suspension of the effectiveness of the award
decision - rejected the precautionary petiion and set the hearing on the merits of the appeal for
24 March 2021. At the heating held on that date, the Regional Administrative Court of
Bolzano/Bozen held the case for decision. In ruling no. 98/2021 published on 31 March 2021,

the TRGA of Bolzano/Bozen rejected not only the application for annulment of the contested

measures but also that for compensation for breach of legitimate expectations, ordering the
applicant to pay the costs of the proceedings.

With regard to the Sales and Trading BU, it should be noted that the resolution of the competent
Authority for Electricity, Gas and the Water System (now the Regulatory Authority for Energy,
Networks and the Environment - ARERA in brief) no. 265/2017/E/eel of 20 April 2017, by
which the latter ordcred Alpetia Smart Services Stl (formerly Alpetia Energy Stl, in turn formetly
Azienda Energetica Trading Stl) - at the end of proceedings initiated against it, as well as against
numerous other dispatching users - to teturn to Tetna "... the amounts cortesponding to the
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undue benefit attained as a result of the non-diligent scheduling strategy adopted by the Cc;:'ll;'lbany
in the period between Januatry 2015 and July 2016" as well as "... any amounts corresponding to
the undue benefit possibly attained as a tesult of any non-diligent scheduling strategies adopted
by the Company, with reference to its FRNP (non-programmable renewable soutces) units, for
the period starting from August 2016 until the entty into force of new trules on the macto-zonal

imbalance set out in Resolution 800/2016/R/eel".

Alperia Smart Services Stl, having assessed the findings received by the Authority and examined
the initiatives to be taken to protect its intetests, filed a precautionary appeal before the Lombardy
— Milan Regional Administrative Court (Tar Lombardy), Section II, Case no. 1531/2017 against
the Authority and, as far as necessary, against Terna. Subsequently, it was necessary to lodge a
precautionary appeal for additional reasons, including against ARERA resolution no.
85/2018/E/eel of 15 February 2018, by which the Authority (i) confirmed the presctiptive
measure adopted by resolution 265/2017/E/eel, modifying the content of Annex B in view of
the importance of some of the factual elements submitted by Alperia Smart Services Stl; and (ii)
Terna shall determine the economic items undetlying the above resolution, determined on the
basis of the criteria set forth in Annex B. Alperia Smart Services S.r.1, in order to avoid the start
of compulsory recovery procedures and without acquiescing to the measure or to the claim, or
renouncing it, paid, on a provisional basis and with no admission whatsoever, the relevant invoice

issued by Terna for Euro 255,755.

At this stage, the counterparties have not yet filed an appearance. A hearing for discussion of the

merits of the appeal has not yet been scheduled.

Following the positive involvement of Alperia Trading Srl in Italian capacity market auctions for

2022 and for 2023, some operators in the thermoelectric and photovoltaic production sector also
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made claims against Alperia Trading Stl, as an involved party, like other assignees, for additional

grounds to cancel the outcomes of these auctions.

The same claimants had already appealed 11 before the Tar Lombardy against the Ministry of
Economic Development, Terna — Rete Elettrica Nazionale Spa and ARERAJ {1 against the
Dectee of the Ministry of Economic Development of 28 June 2019 (which approved the
regulations of the system to remunerate electricity production capacity availability), the opinion
281/2019/R/eel of 27.06.2019 provided by ARERA to MISE and the rulings ARERA
363/2019/R/eel of 3.09.2019 and 364/2019/R /eel of 3.09.2019, as well as the notice of TERNA
published on 5 September 2019 and the "FAQs" of TERNA, requesting their cancellation,
subject to suspension which was then adjourned, with the first hearing on 26 February 2020,

adjourned to another date.

Two of the operators filing an appeal with the Lombardy Regional Administrative Court, also
filed an appeal before the General Court of the European Union in order to have the decision of
the European Commission that declared the conditions establishing the Italian capacity market

as compatible with the internal market, in the light of European regulations on State aid, annulled.

In view of the considerable impact on the stability of the national energy system, the trade
associations Elettricita Futura and Utilitalia proposed ad gppenendum action in proceedings before
the Tar Lombardy and applied to take action in cases pending before the General Court of the

European Union.

Alperia Trading Stl appeared on its own behalf in the proceedings before the Lombardy Regional
Administrative Court and filed an application to intetvene in support of the conclusions of the
European Commission in the proceedings pending before the General Coutt of the European

Union. On 1 June 2020, the Italian Government filed its own briefs, requesting that the
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aforementioned appeals be dismissed in their entirety. By order dated 2 June 2020, Alperia
Trading Stl was admitted to intervene in proceedings before the General Court of the European
Union. On 19 June 2020, the European Commission filed its rejoinders in the respective

proceedings, concluding that the General Court should dismiss the actions as unfounded.

Alpetia Trading Stl filed its own briefs. Other operators concerned, as well as Tetna, also
intervened in the proceedings. Before the deadline of 15 October 2020, the applicants filed a
single memorandum of comments on the pleadings of the opposing parties, including Alpetia
Trading S1l and trade associations. However, the Commission did not submit any comments.
The Court Registry declared the written patt of the procedute closed. A possible continuation of

the oral part of the procedure before the General Court of the European Union is pending.

As regards the Heat and Services area, GSE, in a notice dated 7 August 2017, requested Alpetia
Ecoplus Stl - for the cogeneration plant combined with disttict heating in Metano/Meran - to
return a part of the renewable energy certificates, awarded for the years from 2008 to 2014, which
- according to GSE - were not due. Alperia Ecoplus Stl appealed against this final measure of the
potentially damaging verification procedure, as well as against the separate measure for the
recovery of the incentive, before the Lazio Regional Administrative Court, under Case
10189/2017, claiming, in addidon to the illegality of the contested measures, that Alperia Ecoplus
Stl cannot be held liable for GSE's request. Following GSE's self-protection cancellation, the
Lazio Regional Administrative Court declared that the matter at issue had ceased to be in dispute
with sentence no. 11738/2017 of 24 November 2017. To protect its tights and interests, Alpetia
Spa also deemed it necessary to appeal for the annulment of the GSE note dated 7 August 2017
before the Lazio Regional Administrative Court (Tar) under GDR no. 11460/2017; we are

currently waiting for the date of the public hearing to be set. k“‘t RTTEy A
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Considering that the audit by GSE refers to yeats ptiot to the transfer of the related business unit

to Alpetia Ecoplus Stl, the latter has prudently allocated a specific risk provision in its financial

statements.

Following the annulment under the self-protection system, with a notice of outcome dated 15
December 2017 and a subsequent note dated 31 January 2018, GSE requested that Alperia Spa
return a portion of the green certificates — in its opinion — not due for the same Merano/Meran
plant, and Alperia Spa therefore had to appeal to the Lazio Regional Administrative Court under

Case no. 2060/2018 for the annulment of the contested deeds and measures. A hearing on this

has not yet been scheduled.

Again in the Heat and Services area, Alpetia Ecoplus Stl appealed to the Lazio Regional
Administrative Court for the annulment of the GSE note of 29 November 2018 with notification
of the outcome of the control activity through verification and inspection of the cogeneration
plant combined with the "Bolzano Sud/Studbozen" disttict heating network and relative
recalculation i peius of the amount of incentives due for the years 2010-2016. Subsequently, it
was necessary to appeal on additional grounds, also against the restitutory claim in GSE's note
of 20 February 2019, referring to the same items appealed against regarding GSE's

communication of 29 November 2018. We are currently awaiting the date of the public heating.

The company has already prudently allocated an adequate provision in its financial statements.

Other contingent liabilities

With regard to Biopower Sardegna Stl, it is worth mentioning that in May 2017, together with

the other defendants, the above-mentioned company was also summoned to appear befote the
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Nuoro Criminal Court, with reference to the events that occurred on 21 July 2014 (urea spill). As
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itis allegedly liable under Italian Legislative Decree 231/2001, Biopower Sardegna Stl was served —
a summons in relation to alleged environmental crimes committed by the defendant, who at that
time was the legal representative and director, since the conduct in question was "also in the

interest and to the benefit" of the company.

With a court order dated August 1, 2018, a hearing was ordered before the Court of Nuoro sitting
as a single judge on 20 December 2018. At the next hearing on 17 January 2019, the Public
Prosecutor requested that two counts be amended to clarify the regulatory provisions in question.
The Court, on request of the defence, granted the request and ordered the notification to the
parties, as provided for by law. The Judge therefore adjourned the case until 14 March 2019 for
the examination of witnesses. In the hearing of 14 October 2019, the new Judge questioned the
witness for the prosecution and arranged for the hearing to take place on 6 February 2020 to
question all consultants of the patties. In the hearing of 6 February 2020, consultants from the
Public Prosecutot's Office and from Biopower Sardegna Stl, as well as other defendants were
questioned. To rule on the objections made by the parties, without continuing the proceedings,
the judge adjourned the heating to 5 May 2020, which was subsequently adjourned to 19 October
2020. At the hearing on 19 October 2020, the Coutt set 2 hearing for 14 January 2021 for the
examination of witnesses and a hearing for 4 February 2021 for the expert witnesses.
Subsequently, it was decided to adjourn the hearing to 25 May 2021 for further examination,

given the absence of cettain experts.

Regarding Biopower Sardegna Stl, it should be noted that at the end of an open procedure for
the award of the scheduled maintenance service for two motor generators fuelled by palm oil,
the second-ranked company filed an appeal, under Case no. 24/2020, before the Court of
Administrative Justice, Autonomous Section of Bolzano/Bozen (TRGA of Bolzano/Bozen). In

77



Abpersa S.p.1 — Consolvdated Vinaneal Statenents at 31 December 2020

a conditional cross-appeal, filed as an independent appeal, under Case no. 60/2020, then joined
with Case no. 24/2020, the other party to the proceedings also sought a declaration that the main

applicant's financial bid was unlawful.

By ruling no. 184/2020 published on 20 July 2020, declarting all the grounds of appeal against the
award of the tender to be unfounded and/or inadmissible, the main appeal, under Case no.
24/2020 was dismissed and, consequently, the joint cross-appeal, under Case no. 60/2020 was
also declared inadmissible due to lack of standing. The appeal before the Council of State to
reverse ruling no. 184/2020 of the TRGA of Bolzano/Bozen was rejected by judgement no.

812/2021.

Due to unforeseeable technical requirements, the absolute necessity to carry out maintenance
work on the two engines, in order to avoid plant downtime and harm to the security of the
national energy supply and, finally, in order to carry out urgent technical work immediately and
ahead of scheduled maintenance, Biopower Sardegna Sl - in the meantime - had had to award
the relevant contract through a negotiated procedure, given the reasons of extreme utgency. The
other party to the proceedings in appeal no. 24/2020 lodged an appeal, under Case no. 75/2020
with the Regional Administrative Court of Bolzano/Bozen against the contracting authority's

decision, which was partially upheld by ruling no. 219/2020.

In the appeal proceedings befote the Council of State brought by Biopower Satdegna Stl against
tuling no. 219/2020 of the TRGA of Bolzano/Bozen, the Council of State - in ruling no.
920/2021 - partially upheld the appeal, declaring the claim for compensation for the equivalent
amount made by the appellant in the first instance inadmissible on the grounds of vagueness and

lack of evidence.
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of Rovereto, under Case no. 608/2018 by the Separate Administration Civic Use Depattment

(ASUC) - Area of Rover-Carbonare.

‘The dispute concerns the alleged presence of parts of the San Floriano d'Egna hydroelectric plant
on plots of land owned by ASUC in the municipality of Antetivo that are subject to civic use
restrictions. ASUC requested the company, which holds the concession for large-scale water use
as from 1 January 2011 and has the use of the wet works in the aforementioned plant as per
specifications, to restore of, subordinately, to pay compensation to ASUC ot indemnify it against
expenses for it to carry out the above, in addition to compensation for damages atising from the
alleged previous unlawful occupation of the assets in question and cancelladon of an easement

to deposit landfill material.

The company, filing a statement of defence and rejoinder on 20 September 2018, entered an
appearance, raising preliminary procedural objections, in particular, with regard to the jurisdiction
of the ordinary court hearing the case and contesting all of the plaintiff's claims; requesting their
complete rejection on the merits. At the heatring on 10 April 2019 for the specification of the
conclusions, the Judge issued an order of his lack of jurisdiction in favour of the High Court of

the Water Authorities at the Court of Appeal of Venice ("TRAP").

Following the notice of reinstatement of the proceedings served by ASUC, the company
appeared before the TRAP, reiterating all defences already made and insisting on the conclusions
and claims being upheld, indicating, as a preliminary, its lack of capacity to be made a defendant
in relation to the requests for the release and restoraton of the property to its ptior conditions,
as well as the claims for compensation, also contesting the request for cancellation of the

casement.
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After granting the parties the time limits for preliminary statements, by order of 3 April 2020 the
TRAP of Venice ordered the Autonomous Provinces of Trento and Bolzano/Bozen to be
summoned, pursuant to Article 107 of the Code of Civil Procedure. The two Autonomous
Provinces entered an appearance, raising a number of preliminary objections and arguing on the

merits.

In particular, the Autonomous Province of Bolzano/Bozen objected first of all, among other
things, that ASUC's application was inadmissible because the mandatory mediation procedure
had not been activated against it. At the heating of 3 December 2020, the Deputy Judge
suspended the proceedings with the Venice TRAP, adjourning the hearing to 13 May 2021, in

order to allow the requested mediation procedure to take place.

Following the request for mediation submitted by ASUC, the mandatory mediation procedure
pursuant to Article 5, paragraph 1, of Legislative Decree 28/2010 concerning rights in rem was
started at the Settlement Service of the Chamber of Commerce of Trento regarding the
Autonomous Province of Trento and Bolzano/Bozen. Following the outcome of the first
meeting on 8 January 2021, the parties asked for the procedure to be extended to SF Energy as

well, so that all subjects concerned with solving the dispute would be available.

ASUC, as the petitioning party, did not oppose this request and therefore the company was also
summoned to the meeting of 2 February 2021 before the mediator at the Chamber of Commerce
of Trento. In order to be able to verify margins for a possible settlement between the partes in

question, the continuation of the meeting was adjourned to 14 April 2021.

Based on investigations carried out through the leading law firm that is assisting the company in
the dispute, and considering the intervention of the Provinces in the case, thete are no elements

at present making it necessary for the company to allocate provisions.
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Transactions with related parties

Related parties are those that share the same controlling entity with the Company, the companies
that directly or indirectly control it, are controlled, ot are jointly controlled by the Parent
Company and those in which the Parent Company holds a stake enabling it to exetcise a

significant influence.

In accordance with paragraph 25 of IAS 24 Related Party Disclosures, the company is exempted
from the disclosure requitements in paragraph 18 (which requires the company to disclose the
nature of the relationship with the related party, in addition to providing information about the
outstanding balances of those transactions, including commitments, necessary for users of the
financial statements to understand the potential effects of that relationship on the financial
statements) in the case of relationships with another entity that is a related party because the same
local authority has control, joint control or significant influence over both the entity that prepares

the financial statements and the other entity.

We note, however, that duting the year under review, (i) related party transactions were cartied
out at arm’s length (or determined on the basis of similar methodologies), (ii) the main details of
transactions with group companies are highlighted in the individual sections of the notes (iii) the

main transactions with the shareholders concerned dividends to shareholders for Euro 26.0

million.
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Number and nominal value of treasury shares and of shares of parent companies held by
the company

With reference to the provisions of the aforementioned Article 2428, paragraph 2, no. 3 and 4 of
the Italian Civil Code, at 31 December 2020, the Company did not own treasury shares nor did

it made acquisitions or disposals of such shares during the year, either directly or through trust

companies or third parties.
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Group situation and operating performance I g
Operating data
The main operating data of the group in the electricity segment are presented below.
(in GIWh) 2020 % 2019 % % change
Hydropower and photovoltaic
4,908 36% 4,150 28% + 18%
production
Production from cogeneration and
317 2% 307 2% + 3%
biomass
Wholesale 3,166 23% 4,788 33% - 34%
Sales to final customers 5,372 39% 5,423 37% - 1%
Total 13,763 100% 14,668 100% - 6%

N.B. lydroclectric and photovoltaic production means the energy produced by subsidiaties and associates on the basis of the Alperia

Group's share, which is subsequently sold to the market and to third parties.

The Group's hydroelectric production amounted to 4,897 GWh in 2020; this quantity is very

high compared to the previous yeat's figure of 4,128 GWh (+19%), benefiting from significant

water inflows (rain and snow) in 2020.

In this regard, the Meteorology and Avalanche Prevention Office of the Civil Protection Agency

of the Province of Bolzano/Bozen noted the following.

2020 was an exceptionally warm year: in the whole of South Tyrol, temperatures were around

one degree above the long-term average and almost all months - except October - wete warmer

than usual. 2020 was also a year of heavy rainfall: in the whole of South Tyrol, it rained and

snowed about 40% more than the long-term average. This abundant rainfall and snowfall were

mainly due to three extreme weather events in late August, early October and early December;

on the contrary, rainfall was rare in January, February and November.
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2020 started with high pressure, with a particulatly dry and mild Januaty compared to the long-
term average. The very mild and dry weather continued in February, with significant precipitation

only on the border with North Tyrol.

March recorded average values. Temperatures were close to the long-term average and rainfall

was also average in most of South Tyrol.

April recorded stable spring weather with lots of sunshine and mild temperatures. It only rained

a lot on the last day.
May was slightly above average in terms of temperature, while rainfall was slightly below average.

June, on the other hand, saw average temperatures, while rainfall showed a north-south gradient.
Locations towatds the main ridge of the Alps recorded considerable rainfall, while in the south

amounts were close to average.

July was initially fairly even, with the hottest days of the summer towatds the end of the month.

There were also no significant changes in rainfall compared to average values.

As in July, thunderstorms, some of them major, occurred throughout South Tyrol in August.
Above all, the flooding event at the end of August, the first of three extreme weather events in

2020, was memotable, due to the extreme values and situations recorded.

In September, the summer seemed to be exceptionally prolonged, with many more days
recording temperatures close to 30 degrees. It was only in the last few days that a cold front with

advetse weather conditions caused a stable overall cooling.

In terms of temperature, October deviated from the 2020 trend. While most othet months of

the year were warmer, October temperatures were below average. In addition, a second
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significant weather event to the south at the beginning of the month led to mudslides, strong

winds and flooding.

November was less eventful. Periods of high pressure followed one another, resulting in no

precipitation and mote sunshine than average for the period.

With the onset of the meteorological winter, the weather changed abruptly and a third extreme
rainfall event was recorded at the beginning of December. Extraordinary amounts of rain and
snow led to toad closutes and avalanches. Towards the end of the year, there was another heavy

snowfall in the valleys.

Looking again at the Group's operating figures, it should be noted that photovoltaic production
stood at 11 GWh, down from the 22 GWh recorded in 2019; it should also be noted that the
figure for the year under review no longer considers the production of the two companies Selsolar

Rimini Stl and Selsolar Monte San Giusto Stl, whose investments were sold in 2020.

The production of electricity from cogeneration amounted to 47 GWh, and from biomass to 270

GWh (overall, the value produced is up on the previous year by around 3%).

Compared to 2019, the wholesale sale of electricity was down, amounting to 3,166 GWh (-34%);

on the othet hand, electticity sales to end customers remained substantially stable at 5,372 GWh

(-1%).

As far as heat is concerned, production amounted to 222 GWht, up on the 217 GWht recorded

in 2019.

The sale of natutal gas came to 421 million cubic metres, compared with 464 million cubic metres

in the previous year.

The data for the five areas in which the Group is organised are provided below:
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1. Production (hydropower and photovoltaics);

2. Sale and trading (electricity, natural gas, heat and various services);

3. Netwotks (distribution and transmission of electricity, natural gas distribution);
4. Heat and services (cogeneration, district heating and biomass plants);

5. Smart Region (Smart Land and Dark Fiber areas as well as energy efficiency).

The costs incurred by the Parent Company were allocated to the five business areas on the basis

of their EBITDA.

Note that the EBITDA is a petformance indicator that is calculated by adding
amottisation/depreciation, provisions and write-downs to the operating income, which is taken
from the income staternent. It should also be noted that the figures for 2019 have been

teclassified for comparability with 2020 figures.

Energy production

EBITDA amounted to Euro 163.9 million compared to Euto 140.3 million in 2019.

Commercial and Trading

EBITDA amounted to Euro 14.2 million, compared with Euro 19.6 million in the previous yeat.
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Networks

EBITDA for this area, equal to Euro 40.2 million increased, compared with Euro 36.5 million in

2019, mainly generated by the distribution and transmission of electricity.
Heat and Services

Total EBITDA for the area amounted to Euro 10.8 million, decreasing compared with Euro 20.8
million in the previous year; in this regard, the results reported by the subsidiaty Biopower
Satdegna Stl, were recognised under Continuning Operations, unlike 2019 when they were allocated

to Discontinued Operations.
Smart Region

This area, which was affected - in particular - by the negative effects of the pandemic, teports a

negative EBITDA of Euro 0.1 million compared to a negative EBITDA of Euro 1.4 million in

2019' ' \mmwdcuu‘( n\u,aMRCA 2 BULLB
“I’"" Soun SEDICT/ gy
nt ra*'.e
1E|[]g§n %éf}% 21 Uﬁﬂgg g
S R - bk
Performance indicators (in thousands of Euros) oA k M’
451 &1
I i IIN
Performance indicators Formula 2019
EBITDA Operating mcome net of amortisation, depreciation,
229,024 215,819
provisions and writc-downs
EBITDA MARGIN 15.93% 13.95%
EBIT Operating ncome 100,923 94,118

Cash and cash equivalents + Financial receivables —
Net debt (394,994) (383,918)

Financial payables

RO Consolidated net profit / total equity 5.58% 5.32%

ROS HBIT / Total Revenues 7.02% 6.08%

‘The tigures for 2019 have been reclassified for comparability with 2020 figures.
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Outlook

In Italy, in the first two months of 2021, the cumulative value of electricity demand, equal to 52.0

"TWh, was down on the same period of 2020 (-2.2%); see, in this regard, the next table.

Energy balance in Italy (GWh) Jan/Feb 2021 Jan/Feb 2020 Change %
[ydroclecrric 7269 6,150 +18.2%
‘Thermal 29,731 31,969 -7.0%
Geothermal 892 949 -6.0%
Wind 4,366 4,037 +81%
Photovoltaic 2,385 2,962 19.5%
Total net production 44,643 46,067 «3.1%
Import 8,405 8,691 -2.6%
Lxport 704 1,298 -458%
Forewgn balance 7,761 7,393 + 5.0%
Pumping consumption (443) (357) +24.1%

51,961 53,103 -2.2%

Electricity demand (GWh)

(Sowrce Terna Spa, Monthly Report ou the Elfectricity Sysiem, Felbruary 2021)

With regard to the Group's expected hydroelectric production, it should be noted that at the end
of February 2021 the level of the reservoirs of the power plants was below the historical average,
while the equivalent energy of the snowpack at high altitudes in the geographical area covered by

the plants of Alpetia Greenpower Stl was considerably higher than the aforementioned average,

which gives reason to hope for good results.
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The meteorology and avalanche prevention office of the Bolzano/Bozen provincial civil
protection agency reported that January 2021 was significantly colder and rainier than previous

years: in that month, both rainfall and snowfall were very substantial, twice as much as normal.

As regards the price of electricity sold on the market, there was a significant increase in January
and February 2021 compared to the same figures for the first two months of 2020: from Euro
47.47/MWh (January 2020) and Euro 39.30/MWh (February 2020) to Euro 60.71/MWh

(Januaty 2021) and Euto 56.57/MWh (February 2021) tespectively.

However, it should be noted that the Group has already partially hedged against the volatility of
electricity prices, having taken out hedges covering most of the expected production for the

cuttrent year.

This will conttibute - together with the economic, financial, managerial and industrial solidity of
the Group achieved in recent years - to limit, as far as possible, the negative effects of the
continuing health emergency; with regard to the latter, it is to be hoped that the severity of the
emergency will gradually diminish and disappear as the population's vaccination campaign

Progresses.

Report pursuant to Article 123 bis, paragraph 2, letter b) of Legislative Decree 58/1998,

containing the risk management and internal control system

Alpetia Spa duting 2020 continued to develop the activities to establish an internal control and
tisk management system (the "Internal control system") capable of managing the risks inherent

in the activities of the company and the group; this effort is still being implemented.
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The internal control system is a set of rules, procedures and organisational structures aimed at

monitoting compliance with the strategies and the achievement of the following goals:
(1) effectiveness and efficiency of processes and business operations;
(ii) quality and reliability of economic and financial information;

(iii) compliance with laws and regulations, as well as with the company's Articles of association

and cotporate rules and procedures;

(iv) safeguarding the value of corporate activities and assets and preventing losses.

The following bodies ate currently involved in control, monitoring and surveillance processes:
the Supervisory Board;

- the Control and Risk Committee;

- the Management Boaxd;
the Internal Audit function;

- the Enterprise Risk function;

- the Supervisory Body.

Given the dual management and control model adopted by the company, both the Supetvisoty
Board and the Management Board of the Parent Company are actively involved in risk control

activities and specifically:

- pursuant to Article 16, paragraph 1, letter (xii) of Alperia Spa's Articles of association, the
Supervisory Board "assesses the degree of efficiency and adequacy of the internal control system,

with specific regard to the monitoring of risks, the functioning of internal audit and the
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accounting information system”. Pursuant to Article 17, paragraph 1, letter (v) of the Artifles of
association, the Chairman of the Supervisory Board, chairing the Control and Risk Committee,
“supervises and activates the procedures and systems in place for the control of the Company’s
and Group’s activities... “. Pursnant to Atticle 17, paragraph 1, letter (vi) of the Atticles of
association, the Chairman of the Supervisory Board "in accordance with the budget established
by the Management Board and approved by the Supetvisoty Board, also activates the information
tools necessary to monitor the cotrectness and adequacy of the organisational structute and of

the accounting and administration system adopted by the Company and the Group";

- pursuant to art. 28, paragraph 1 of the Articles of association, the Management Board “is vested,
on an cxclusive basis, with the broadest powers for the management and administration of the
Company ...". In addition, pursuant to Article 29, paragtaph 1 of the Articles of association, the
Management Board “submits a special report to the Supervisory Board on the overall
performance of the company’s operations and on major transactions in terms of size and
characteristics petformed by the Company or its subsidiaries and, in any case, it reports on

transactions in which members of the Management Board have an interest on their own or on

behalf of third parties™.

Within the Supervisory Board, the Committee for Control and Risk was set up, which has the
task of assisting the Committee in its responsibilities with regard to the internal control system

with non-binding recommendation, investigation and advisory functions.

The task of verifying the adequacy and the effective functioning of the internal control systems,
which is assigned to the Supervisory Board, involves conducting meetings and analyses with the

main stakeholders, including — in particular — the Supervisory Body, the Internal Audit Manager,
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the Head of the Enterprise Risk Management function and the controlling bodies of the

subsidiaries; it also involves the activation of petiodic reporting and monitoring systems.

The Internal Audit Manager has no operating responsibility; he/she reports to the Chairman of

the Management Board and, functionally, to the Chaitman of the Supetvisory Board.

This manager has ditect access to all the information useful fot the petformance of their duties.

The Internal Audit Manager repotts the results of his/her activity, which is defined in a specific
Audit Plan, including any identified deficiencies and the corrective actions identified, through
appropriate Audit Reports that are submitted to the Supervisory Boatd, the Management Board,
the General Manager of the Parent Company and the head of the function that is being audited;

if the audit concerns the group companies, the Audit Reports are also sent to the relevant bodies

of the company concerned.
In addition, annual summary reports of the activities cartied out during the reference petiod are

drawn up, which are sent to the Supetvisory Board and to the Management Board.

Upon invitation, the Internal Audit Manager participates in the Supetvisory Board, Control and
Risk Committee and Management Board meetings.

The Internal Audit function assists the Supetvisory Body of Alperia Spa and various Group
companies, of which the Internal Audit Manager is 2 membet.

During 2020, the Internal Audit Manager first defined a specific Audit Plan, which was approved

by the Management Board at the meeting of 30 March 2020, after consulting with the Chairman

of the Supervisory Board.
In the annual report for 2020, containing a summaty of the activities cartied out in the period
under review, the Head pointed out that “Based on the audits carried out in 2020, there was no
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evidence that might lead to a negative assessment of the adequacy and effectiveness of the

internal control system".

With regard to the Enterprise Risk implementation process, this is constantly evolving in order
to develop tools that meet the ever increasing tisk control and management tequirements
imposed by the organisational complexity of the Parent Company and the entire group, the status
as issuer of listed bonds and the developments that are typical of a multi-business group. Alperia
Spa implemented a risk assessment and reporting process, in keeping with the Enterprise Risk
Management methodology and with the best practices in Risk Management, which aims to make
risk management an integral and systematic part of management processes. The main

assumptions considered in the model specifically refer to the group business plan.

The risk assessment is based on the introduction of two essential variables: the impact on
company petformance if the risk event occurs and the probability of occutrence of the uncertain

event.

The methodology adopted is modular and allows for a gradual approach that leverages on the

refinement of experience and of the methods of analysis used by the group.

In January 2020, the new Head of the Enterprise Risk function became operative; the existing model
based on CoSO and ISO 31000 standards was improved and identified, working primarily on
governance, and identifying the tisk owners and tisk expetts; qualitative/non-financial risks were also

identified and assessed, including them in a single database with quantitative/financial risks.

A quarterly process of issuing and logging risks was put in place, in a similar way to how the

Group’s economic/ financial results are presented.
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The first ERM reporting at 30 September 2020 was presented to the Management Board at the
meeting of 17 December 2020. Previously, the methodology adopted by the Group had been

assessed by a leading company specialising in this field, with a positive outcome.

In the first half of 2021, the Group intends implementing the Reputational Risk Management,/
Stakeholder Engagement project: the aim is to identify, evaluate and mitigate the reputational risks
of the Alperia Group and structure the management of stakeholders. At the end of 2020, the

consulting firm supporting Alperia in the development of the project in question was identified.

Another issue putsued towards the end of 2020/early 2021 concetns the definition of a Risk
Policy for the Group. The aim is to formalize and refine the process, in order to be in line with

market best practices, and obtain TUV cettification for ISO 31000, in the medium term.

An operatdonal Risk Management function was set up at Alperia Trading Stl and Alperia Smart
Services Stl, tasked with monitoring market risk (in particular the price risk related to the sale and

management of energy commodities), as well as risk related to estimated enetrgy volumes and the

financial receivables related to end customer acquisition and management.

While this function has been operating since October 2019 at Alperia Trading Stl, it should
become operative at Alperia Smart Services Sl by the first half of 2021.

The overall process of detecting and analysing risk areas also includes the financial teporting
process.

In this respect, it is noted, for example, that the annual financial reporting process, and, especially,
the description of the main risks and uncertainties to which Alperia and the group are exposed,

is linked to the flow of information coming from the Enterprise Risk processes of the companies

and the group.

94



g |
lperie Sp. — Consolidated Vinuncal Statements at 31 Decernber 2020 AR

For a description of the main risks affecting the Company and the Group, please $c& the

respective notes to the separate and consolidated financial statements.

As you know, Alperia has adopted an Organisation, Management and Control Model (MOG)

pursuant to Legislative Decree 231/2001 (Model 231), as well as a Code of Ethics and a

Disciplinary Code and has appointed a Supetvisory Body.

The Model aims to define the guidelines, rules and principles of conduct that govern the activity
of the Company, which all recipients must follow in otder to prevent - in the context of specific
‘at-risk™ activities carried out at Alperia - the commission of crimes contemplated in Legislative

Decree 231/2001 and ensure fair, transpatent conditions in business dealings.

The implementaton of the Model provides that activities considered "sensitive” must be carried

out in accordance the provisions of the Model; any non-compliance may lead the company to

apply penalties.

Following developments in the applicable legal framework, which introduced new types of crimes
that are significant under Legislative Decree 231/2001, and in view of intetnal otganizational
changes that have modified some company processes and operations, Alperia Spa, based on the
latest acquisitions made and on changes at an intergroup contract level, and following specific

indications from the Supervisory Body — revised the latest version of the Model (updated on 29

November 2018), during 2020, along with its prevention protocols.

The new Model which includes updated risk mapping and was prepared with the assistance of

an independent consulting firm, was approved by the Management Board in the first meeting of

2021, held on 28 January.
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During 2021, the Group companies will update theit Models in turn; Neogy Stl instead approved

the draft of an entirely new Model, requited by the company’s governance and opetations.

The Supetvisoty Body of the Parent Company comptises the Internal Audit Manager and two

external professionals.

In February 2020, the Patent Company appointed the new Body for a three-year term of office,

confirming the previous members, thus ensuring operating continuity.

The composition and functions of the Supervisory Body comply with the characteristics in

Legislative Decree 231/2001 and in the related guidelines of Confindusttia.

Specifically, the Supervisory Body has independent powers of initiative and conttol and the
independent exercise of such powers is ensuted (i) by the fact that the members of the Body are
not subject to hierarchical constraints in the petformance of their function, as they report directly

to the highest operating lcvel, namely the Management Board and (if) by the presence of an

external member as Chairman of the Body.

The members of the Supervisory Body are adequately trained and have a consolidated and
qualified experience in accounting, auditing, organisational activities and in criminal law; in
addition, they can rely on internal staff within Alperia and on external consultants to carty out

any technical activities as may be necessary to ensure the control function is propetly petformed.

The Body is entrusted with the task of monitoting the operation and observance of the Model
and of keeping it up to date. The Supervisory Body reports on the implementation of the Model,

the detection of any critical aspects and the need for modifications.
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The Supervisory Body reports to the Management Board of the Parent Company, inforrijﬁg&
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whenever it deems approptiate, about significant matters or events related to the conduct of its
activities.

The Group Code of Ethics is a key element of the Model, as well as a component of the preventive
control system. This Code sets out Alperia’s ethical and professional principles and the guidelines
and principles of conduct designed to prevent the offences referred to in Legislative Decree
231/2001. The Code is an essential element of the Model as it constitutes a systematic corpus of
internal rules designed to disseminate a culture of ethics and corporate transparency. The Code calls
for the observance of the principles and rules contained therein, by the corporate bodies, by all the

employees of the group and by anyone who, permanently or temporatily, interacts with the group.

Each group company is required to endorse the principles of the Code of Ethics adopted by

Alperia and to put in place the most appropriate measures to ensure their respect.
The Code of Ethics is available on the Parent Company and companies website (whete adopted).

PricewaterhouseCoopers Spa is the independent auditor of the company Alperia Spa and the

Alpetia Group.

Bolzano/Bozen, 31 March 2021
The Chairman of the Management Board

Flora Emma Ktdss
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Consolidated statement of financial position

{en thorsandy of o)

Notes At 31 December 2020 At 31 December 2019
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Concessions 9.1 471,392 512,086
Goodwill 9.1 83,512 80,817
Other intangible asscts 0.1 28,449 10,824
‘Tangble asscts 9.2 896,523 848,615
Investments 23 37,509 37,034
Deferred tax assets 9.4 SR1I50 56,552
Other non-current recavables and financial assets 9.5 34,089 42,171
Total non-current assets 1,609,523 1,588,699
Cutrent assets
‘I'rade recevables 9.6 303,705 293,566
Inventories 97 38,363 17,572
Cash and cash equivalents 9.8 168,576 171,935
Orther current recavables and linancial assets 9.9 97,059 95,078
Total current assets 607,703 578,151
Assets held for sale and Discontinuing Operations 9.10 24,765 104,804
TOTAL ASSETS 2,241,991 2,271,654
Share capital 2.11 750,000 750,000
Other reserves 911 245,923 235,669
Retamed profis (accumulated losses) 9.11 25,319 (3.511)
Group profit for the year 9.11 60437 56,210
Total shareholders’ equity attributable to owners of the parent 1,081,279 1,038,368
Non-controlling nterests 9.11 29,671 26,462
Total consolidated cquity 1,110,950 1,064,830
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Provisions for risks and charges 012 37,407 42,499
Lmploye: benghits 9.13 15,042 14,425
Deferred rax labilities 9.4 130,836 137,179
Non-current borrowings from banks and other lenders 9.14 572,711 592,392
Orther non-current payables 9.15 54,715 52,279
Total non-current labilities 810,711 838,773
Current liabilities
“I'rade payables 9.16 236,623 250,622
Current borrowings from banks and other lenders 9.14 37,022 38,018
Current tax habihties 9.17 5,317 9,002
Other current payables 915 40,758 43,415
Total current liabilities 319,721 341,955
Assets held for sale and Discontinuing Operations 210 600 26,005
TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 2,241,991 2,271,654
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Consolidated income statement

(in thausands of Lures) Notes 2020 201%
Revenues 0.1 1,351.901 1,507,398
Other revenues and income 0.2 85,818 39,481
Total revenues and other income 1,437,719 1,546,878
Costs for raw maternals, consumables and goods 10.3 (529,615) (645,340)
Cost of scrvices 10.4 (596,549) (605.011)
Personnel costs 10.5 {67,165) (63,325)
Amortsation/depreciation, provisions and write-downs 10.6 (128,101) (121,701
{of which ralwe adiuviments of trade receivabiles) (17,512 (1.316)
Profit/ (loss) arising from the far value measurement of investments m 07 0 0
associates and jomt ventures
Other operating costs 10.8 (12,70%) {12,325
Nect income/ (expenses) from commaodity denvanves 10.9 (2.664) (5,056)
Total costs (1,336,796) (1,452,761)
Opcrating income 100,923 94,118
Gans (losses) on valuauon of invesements 110 (1,655) {230
Fiancial mcomgc 10.11 6,920 4,107
Financial charges 10,11 (19,098) (14,440)
fof whach vulue adiusiments of financral receivatotes) (50) 0
Net financial income (13,834) (10,563)
Profit before taxes 87,089 83,554
Taxes 1012 (26.315) (14,581)
Net profit/ (loss) (A) from continuing operations 60,774 68,974
Discontinuing epcrations 10,13 1,175 (12,341)
Net profit/ (loss) (B) from Discontinuing Operations 1,175 (12,341)
Consolidated profit/(loss) for the year 61,949 56,633
owners of the parent 60,037 56,210
1912 422

nom-conirolbng itleresty
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Consolidated comprehensive income statement

(i thowsands of Lnroy)

2020 2019

Consolidated profit/(loss) for the year (A) 61,949 56,633
Income Statement items that may subsequently be reclassified to the income statement
(net of taxes)
Gains / (Qosses) on cash flow hedges 12,036 (6,796)
Total Income Statement items that may subsequently be reclassified to the income 12,036 (6,796)
statement (B)
Income Statement items that cannot subsequently be reclassified to the income
statement (net of taxes)
Actuarial gains / losses on employee defined benefit plans (195) (1,069)
Total Income Statement items that cannot subsequently be reclasgified to the income

(195) (1,069)
statement (C)
Total other gains (losses) not recognised in profit or loss 11,341 (7,865)
net of tax effect (B) + (C)
Total comprehensive income (A)+(B)+(C) 73,790 48,768
Overall result:
of which attributable to the Group 71488 50,024
of which attributable to third partics 2,302 (1,256)
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Statement of changes in consolidated equity at 31 December 2019

Reserve

L Retained Equity ~

. . Share Statutory Pursuantto Firsttime Cashflow g g,y  Other —© o , attributable O™ Conoqlidated

fin thousands of Luras) Notes " art. 5.42 adoption hedge consolidated Year’s result controlling .
capital  reserve reserve (accumula to owners of . equity
Framework reserve  reserve reserves interests
ted losses) the parent
Agrecment

At 31 December 2018 750,000 73,492 23,060 (9,972)  (2,155) (3,449) 151,606  (20,425) 42,445 1,004,608 25,340 1,030,449
Dividend allocation of 2018 profit [t 1,358 ! i} 0 [ 0 17,087 (42,445) (24,0000 (1,226) (25,226)
Equity after the resolution to allocate the net result 0 980,608 24.615 1.005.223
for the year 750,000 74,850 23,060 9,972)  (2,155) (3,444) 151,606  (3,338) X X ,005,22
\Vaiv.cr of receivables by the sharcholder Autonomous ™ a 0 9.1 a 0 0 0 0 a 9,00 0 2,001
Province of Bolzano/Bozen
Change i cash flow hedge reserre { 0 0 0 (5116 ] )] 0 i (5.116) (1.680) (6,796)
settdement of the enery discount for former employees 9,13 0 0 a 0 0 132 B (173) 0 (41) 0 1)
Change in [AS 19 reserve 9.13 0 0 0 0 0 (1,088) 0 0 0 (1,088) 0 (1,088)
Changes in the scape of consolidation 23 0 0 0 { 0 0 (1,667) V) 0 (1,667) 30 1,352
Other changes 0 0 Ll 0 0 o] 371 [\] 0 3 85 456
(junsuiidn_lcd profit (loss) and peofit (loss) atrbutable to T m m o a a a 0 56,210 56,210 472 56,633
owners of the parent
At 31 December 2019 750,000 74,850 32,151 (9,972) (7.2T) (4,400) 150,309 (3,511) 56,210 1,038,368 26,462 1,064,830

{(*) By letter dated 28 June 2019, the sharcholder Autonomous Provinee of Bolzano/Bozen notified the waiver of Furo 9,091 thousand in order to comply with specific commitments undertaken in the
signing of framework agreements catered into at the time of the establishment of Alpeda Spa.

‘The dividend per share approved in IY 2019 amounted to Euro 0.03200.
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I:::n:lvtct First-time Cash flow Other s Equity N
. . Share  Statutory PV o . 1AS 19 . profits , attributable O Consolidated
{in thessands of Euros) Notes . art. 5.4.2 adoption hedge consolidated Year's result controlling .
capital  reserve F reserve (accumula to ownmers of . equity
ramework reserve [EServe [ESCIVES interests
ted losses) the parent
Agreement

At 31 December 2019 750,000 74,850 32,151 9,972)  (7,271) (4,400) 150,309 (3,511) 56,210 1,038,368 26,462 1,064,330
Dividend allocation of 2019 profit 0 1,381 i 0 o 0 0 28,830 {56,210) {26,000) (359) {26,359)
Equity after the resolution to allocate the net
e 750,000 76,231 32,151 9,972y (7.271) (4,400) 150,309 25,319 0 1,012,368 26,103 1,038,471
Change in cash flow hedge reserve 0 0 0 0 11,645 0 0 0 0 11,645 30 12,036
Change in TAS 19 reserve 6.13 0 { 0 0 0 (195} 0 v} 0 (195) 1 (195)
Changes in the scope of consolidation 23 0 Q o 0 [V 0 (2,654) o 0 (2,654) 649 (2,005)
Other changes 0 0 0 0 0 0 78 0 0 78 615 693
Consolidated profit {loss) and profit (loss) attnibutable 0 0 a 0 0 0 0 0 60,037 60.037 1912 61,949
10 owners of the parent
A1 31 December 2020 750,000 76,231 32,151 (9,972) 4,373 (4,593) 147,734 25,319 60,037 1,081,279 29,671 1,110,950

The dividend per share approved in FY 2020 amounted to Euro 0.03467.
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EARNINGS PER SHARE

Earnings per share are calculated by dividing the result for the petiod by the number of

otdinary shares in circulation at 31 December 2020.
Group net profit (in thousands of Euros): 60,037
Number of ordinaty shares (in thousands): 750,000

Basic and diluted eatnings per share: 0.0800
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Consolidated cash flow statement

(a1 thousands of 1:urns)

Notes 2020 2019
Cash flow from operating activities
Profit before taxes 88,264 71,213
Continiing operdtions 87,089 83,554
Discentitnining nperations 1,175 (12,341)
Adjustments o earswings before faxes o oblain the ok flow from aperateng actirilies!
Amortisation/Depreciation 10.6 101,846 06,709
Net allocations to provisions and write-downs of tangible and intangible asscees 10.6 9,011 26,003
Net (Capatal gains) Capital losses from disposals of tangible and financial assets 972 (2,297
Net (gans) losses from discontinuing operations 240 0
Write-down of trade recervables 10.6 17,512 1,316
Gams (losses) on valuation of mvestments recogniscd m profit or loss 109 1,655 230
fair value of hedging derivatves in QCI 12,036 (6,796)
lixchange ratc effect 10.10 23 17
Net financial charges/{income) 10.10 12,156 10,316
Cash flow from operating activitics before changes in working capital 155,450 125,498
Changes in norking vpital
Inventonies 0.7 (13,233) (209)
T'radc and other receavables 9.4, 9.5, 9.6, 9.9, 9.10 34,036 (32,943)
T'rade and other payables 9.15, 9.16, 9.17 (89,630) (3,280)
Cash flow from changes in working capital (68,827) (37,132)
Utlisations of provisions for risks and charges 9.12 (13,872) (6,560)
Use of provisions for employee benefits 9.13 (2,073) (3,437)
Net financial charges paid (10,066) (9,812
Cash flow generated by operating activitics (A) 148,877 139,770
digcontinuing operations 3,749 (2,001)
Cash flow from Investing activities
Tangble, intangible and financial assets 91,92 (116,842) (139,406)
Net investments in companics (or business units) net of cash and cash cquivalents 24 (3,624) 19.914)
acquired
Cash flow from disinvestment activities
‘Tangjble, intangible and financial assets 91,9293 12,349 62,477
Cash flow generated by investing activities (B) (108,117) (96,843)
discontinuing operations (240) ©)
Cash flow from financing activities
Change i ner fmancial payables 9.14 (22,788) (46,645)
Payment of dwadends (22,5749 (16,135)
Cash flow generated by financing activities (C) (45,362) (62,780)
discontimuing operations 0 7,764
Net cash flow for the year (A + B + C) (4,602) (19,853)
discontinuing operations 3,509 (9,768)
Cash and cash cquivalents at the beginning of the year 171,935 181,861
Cnsh and cash cquiv?lenm arising from acquistaons desenbed in section 2.4 Information 1243 9927
equired by Tntermational Accounting Standard IFRS 3" ’ !
Cash and cash cquivalents at the end of the year 168,576 171,935

105



Adperiu S.p.A — Comoliduted Vintuncial Statensessis al 31 Decesnber 2020

NOTES

1. General information

The Parent Company Alpetia Spa (the "Company" or "Alperia” or “Parent Company®) is a

company incorporated under Italian law and domiciled and organised in Italy, with registered

office in Bolzano/Bozen, Via Dodiciville no. 8.

At 31 December 2020, the Company's share capital was broken down as follows:

Number of shares

Nominal value

% of share capital

Description
(Euro thousands)

Auntonomous Province of

347 852,466 347,852 46.38%
Bolzano/Bozen
Municipality of Bolzano/Bozen 157,500,000 157,500 21.00%
Municipality of Merano/Meran 157,500,000 157,500 21.00%
Selfin SA-Gmbl I 87,147,534 87,148 11.62%
Total 750,000,000 750,000 100.00%

Alperia and its subsidiaries (the "Alperia Group" or the "Group") are engaged in five different

operating segments, summarised below:

® Production (hydropower and photovoltaics);

¢ Sale and trading (electricity, natural gas, heat and vatious services);

® Networks (distribution and transmission of electticity, natural gas disttibution);
® Heat and services (cogeneration, district heating and biomass plants);

e Smart Region (Smart Land and Dark Fiber ateas as well as energy efficiency).

»
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2. Summary of the accounting principles adopted

The accounting policies and principles applied in the prepatation and drafting of the Group’s
Consolidated Financial Statements (the "Consolidated Financial Statements”) are presented
below. These accounting standards have been applied consistently in the petiods presented in

this document.

2.1  Basis of preparation

Regulation (EC) No 1606/2002 of 19 July 2002 introduced the obligation for companies with
equity and/or debt securities listed in one of the regulated markets of the European Community
to apply the International Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRS”) issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board ("IASB") and adopted by the European Union ("EU IFRS" ot
"International Accounting Standards") in the preparation of their financial statements as of the
2005 financial year. On 23 June 2016, the Company apptoved a "Euro Medium Term Note
Programme" ("EMTN") listed on the Itish Stock Exchange for a maximum amount of Euro 600
million. On 27 June 2016, the Company issued the first two tranches of Notes, for a nominal
value of Euro 125 million and Euro 100 million, which wete admitted to trading on 30 June 2016;
on 23 December 2016, the Company issued the third tranche of Notes for a nominal value of
Euro 150 million. During 2017, the company finally issued the fourth tranche of bonds for a

value of NOK 935 millien.

Since 2016, Alpetia has qualified as a Public Interest Entity ("EIP") and is therefore required to

prepare the separate and consolidated financial statements in accordance with EU IFRS.

However, the Company does not fall within the scope of Directive 2013/50/EU and is therefore

not required to prepare its consolidated financial statements in the European Single Electronic
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Format (ESEF), as it is the issuer of bonds with a denomination per unit of at least Euro 100

thousand in accordance with Directive 2004/109/EC, as implemented by Ireland in its capacity

as the home Member State chosen by the Company.

These Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with the

international accounting standards and on a going concern basis.

The EU IFRS are all the “International Financial Repotting Standards”, all the “International
Accounting Standards” (IAS), all the interpretations of the “International Reporting
Interpretations Committee” (IFRIC), previously referred to as "Standing Interpretations
Committee" (SIC) which, on the date of approval of the Consolidated Financial Statements, have
been approved by the European Union in accordance with the procedure laid down in Regulation

(EC) No. 1606/2002 of the European Patliament and of the Council of 19 July 2002.

These Consolidated Financial Statements have been drawn up on the basis of the best knowledge
of international accounting standards and in the light of the best academic writings on this matter;
any future guidelines and updated interpretations will be reflected in subsequent years, in the

manner as set out in the relevant accounting standards.

These Consolidated Financial Statements have been approved by the Company's Management

Boatd on 31 Match 2021 and will be submitted to the Supervisory Board of Alperia Spa for

approval on 10 May 2021.
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2.2 Statements

2.2.1 Form and content of the financial statements

With regard to the form and content of the consolidated financial statements, the Group has

made the following choices:

i)  the statement of financial position separately shows cutrtent and non-curtent assets and,
likewise, represents current and non-current liabilities;

1)  the consolidated income statement shows a classificaton of costs and revenues by nature;

1ii) the consolidated statement of comprehensive income includes, in addition to the result for
the petiod, the changes in shareholders’ equity related to income or cost items, which, by
explicit provision of the International Accounting Standards, are recognised in equity; this
statement is called Other Comprehensive Income or OCI;

iv)  the consolidated cash flow statement is presented according to the indirect method;

v)  the statement of changes in Consolidated Equity and in equity attributable to owners of the

parent.

The formats used, as specified above, are those that best represent the Group's financial position

and operating performance.

These financial statement have been drawn up in Euro, which is the functional currency of the
Group. The amounts shown in the financial statements and in the detail tables included in the

Notes are in thousands of Euro, unless otherwise stated.

The Consolidated Financial Statements are audited by the auditing firm PricewaterhouseCoopers

Spa, which is the independent auditor of the Company and of the Group.
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2.2.2 Method for presenting financial information

These Consolidated Financial Statements do not allow for a complete comparison of the
staternent of financial position and income statement balances at 31 December 2020 with those

of the priot year, mainly due to:

o the reclassification of the balances relating to the Group company Biopower Sardegna Stl
to "Continuing operations’ in 2020, following changes in the outlook that make it no longer

reasonably possible to sell the company;

e the sale of assets included in a business unit consisting of fibre optic systems of the Group
companies Alperia Fiber Stl and Alperia Smart Setvices Stl. The counterparty in the
transaction - which led to the recognition of a capital gain of Euro 30 thousand in the
Consolidated Financial Statements - is Infranet Spa, a company controlled by the parent

company's shateholder, the Autonomous Province of Bolzano /Bozen;

¢ the changes in the scope of consolidation of the Group, as explained in section “2.3 Scope

of consolidation and changes” of these Notes;

e the acquisition by the Group company, Alperia Smart Services Stl, from Green Power
Enetgy Spa of a business unit consisting of all the assets, liabilities, contracts and legal
relations, both active and passive, telating to the management of the sale of electricity and
gas to 3,352 custorners. The transaction in question, which was financially settled in 2020,
led, in addition to liabilities amounting to Euro 302,000, to the recognition in the financial

statements of Alperia Smart Services Stl of goodwill amounting to Euro 449,000.
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For a better comparability of the information in these Consolidated Financial Statements, some
balances at 31 December 2019, as regards the financial positon and operating petformance, were

reclassified; these changes are summarised in the paragraph below.

2.2.3 Reclassifications

The information required by paragraph 41 of IAS 1 in respect of reclassifications made duting

the yeat is set out below.

Balance sheet reclassifications

The fair value of commodity derivatives traded on the European Energy Exchange and subject
to "cascading” (substitution of the same, on the last trading day prior to the next delivery period,
with equivalent positions spread over subsequent months or quarters), classified in the balance
sheet items "Other current receivables and financial assets” and "Cutrent borrowings from banks
and other lends" was offset against receivables from clearing houses recognised in the balance
sheet item "Other cutrent receivables and financial assets".

The effects of the restatement on the affected statement of financial position balances at 31

December 2019 ate shown in the table below:

(in thowsandy of |.uros) 2019 2019 restated Difference
Other current receivables and financial asscts 125,923 95,078 (30,845)
Current borrowings from banks and other lenders 68,863 38,018 (30,845)

111



Adperia §.p.A — Consolidated Iinancidl Siatements at 31 December 2020

Reclassifications of the consolidated income statement

¢ The positive net margin realised following the closing of the commodity derivatives with
execution through delivery or receipt of the undetlying asset, for speculative purposes,
amounting in 2019 to Euro 15,802 thousand, was reclassified from the items "Revenues"
and "Costs for raw matetals, consumables and goods" to the item "Net
income/ (expenses) from commodity detivatives” in the consolidated income statement.
All other realised and unrealised effects related to derivative financial instruments not
recognised using the "Hedge accounting” method - amounting in 2019 to a net expense
of Euro 20,858 thousand - were also reclassified from the "Financial result" section of the

consolidated income statement to "Net income/ (expenses) from commodity derivatives".

The capitalised costs were broken down into tangible and intangible assets, which were
previously recognised in full - for reasons of simplification - as a reduction in “Costs for

raw materials, consumables and goods”, in the relevant income statement items.

The change in inventories of contract work in progress, previously classified as a

deducton in “Costs for raw materials, consumables and goods”, was reclassified to “Cost

of services” in the consolidated income statement.

The effects of the restatement on the affected income statement balances at 2019 ate shown in

the table below:

(a2 tharands af Toarm) 2019 2019 restated Difference
Revenues 1,523,276 1,507,398 (15,878)
Costs for raw materals, consumables and goods (579,546) (645,340) (65,794)
Cost of services (661,116) (605,011) 56,105
Personnel costs (73.09%) {63,328) 9,765
Net sincome/{cxpenses) from commodity denvatives 0 (5,056) (5,056)
Operating income 209,521 188,663 (20,858)
fmancial income 32,296 4,107 (28,190)
I'inancial charges (63,487) (14.440) 49,047
{10,333) 20,858

Net financial income

(31.191)
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2.3 Scope of consolidation and changes

The Consolidated Financial Statements include the statement of financial position and income
statement of the Patent Company Alperia Spa for the year 2020 and its subsidiaries. These
financial statements have been appropriately adjusted, where necessary, to align them to the

Parent Company's accounting principles.

The corporate structure of the Alperia Group at 31 December 2020 is presented below.
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As explained in the Repott on Operations, the following changes in the scope of consolidation

took place in 2020:

e the acquisition of the minotity interest equal to 49.9% of the voting rights of the company
Green Energy Group Stl by the company Gruppo Green Power Stl, which took place by

deed dated 29 May 2020;
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¢ the sale of all the interests held in Selsolar Rimini Stl and Selsolar Monte San Giusto Srl;
which had been classified as "Discontinuing operations” in the Consolidated Financial
Statements for the year ended 31 December 2019;

¢ the establishment, on 8 July 2020, by Alperia Batrtucci Spa, togethet with a counterpart
from outside the Alperia Group, of the EfficienteRete business network, aimed at
implementing energy efficiency and seismic refurbishment works on buildings benefiting
from deductions and incentives, throughout the territory. The entity in question, which
has legal personality and is comparable to a company, is controlled by the Group by virtue
of contractual clauses and, consequently, is subject to consolidation on a line-by-line basis;

¢ the acquisition by Alperia Spa of a majority stake equal to 50.51% of the voung rights of
Hydrodata Spa, a leading national technical consulting company, followed by the
incorporation, on 19 November 2020, of Alperia Innoveering Stl, a company owned 99%
by Hydrodata Spa and 1% by Alperia Spa (and, consequently, indirectly controlled by the

latter).

The complete list of companies included in the scope of consolidation at 31 December 2020 with
information on the consolidation method used to prepare the Consolidated Financial Statements

1s set out in Annex A to this document.

Annex B instead has information on significant investees measuted with the equity method,
which are required by paragraphs B12 and following of IFRS 12 (the data are inferred from the

financial statements of investees).
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2.4 Information required by International Accounting Standard IFRS 3

Acquisition of a minority interest in Green Energy Group Sr/

The completion of the acquisition of the entire shareholding in Green Energy Group Stl was
part of rationalisation actions undertaken by the Group. The transaction took place for an
amount comprising a fixed component of Euro 350 thousand and an earn-out component of
Euro 100 thousand, both paid at the date of execution, as well as a contingent and deferred

component of Euro 160 thousand, which will be paid to the seller subject to specific contractual

obligations being met.

In accordance with paragraph B96 of IFRS 10, the difference between the adjustment to minority

interests and the consideradon paid was recognised in Group equity.
Acquisition of Hydrodata Spa

The acquisition of the majority of shares in Hydrodata Spa, completed on 8 October 2020, has
enabled the Group to welcome a leading operator active in the development and provision of
engineering services, technical-economic consulting and applied research in the field of water

managetnent.

This acquisition is one of a series of initiatives designed to achieve the important goals outlined

in the Alperia Group's 2020-2024 business plan.

The analysis catried out on the shareholders' agreement entered into between Alpetia Spa and
the minority sharcholder of Hydrodata Spa in October 2020, pursuant to paragtaph B3 of
Appendix B to IFRS 10 confirmed that the transaction had resulted in the transfer of control of
Hydrodata Spa to the Alpetia Group, which has therefore consolidated it on a line-by-line basis

starting from the second half of 2020.
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Pursuant to IFRS 3, the acquisition of Hydrodata Spa was included in the financial stater&f}its of
the Alperia Group, for a total of Euro 13,696 thousand, mainly referred to assets (Euro 2,519
thousand), inventories of contract wortk in progress (Euro 7,559 thousand), trade receivables
(Euro 1,982 thousand), cash and cash equivalents (Euro 1,243 thousand) and habilities (Euro
11,400 thousand), mainly attributable to miscellaneous provisions and payables; minority
interests included in consolidated equity on first-time consolidation following the purchase price
allocation amounted to Euro 1,137 thousand. At the time of the Purchase Price Allocation,

goodwill of Euro 1,329 thousand was also recognised in the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Lastly, the consolidated income statement of the Alpetia Group at 31 December 2020 includes
revenues and other income, before consolidation adjustments, attributable to the company
Hydrodata Spa for Euro 2,311 thousand, operating costs equal to Euto 2,161 thousand, as well

as net profit of Euro 89 thousand, of which Euro 44 thousand attributable to minority interests.
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The criteria used by the Group to define the scope of consolidation and the related consolidation

2.5 Consolidation principles

principles ate illustrated below.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are those companies over which the Group has control. The Group controls a
company when it is exposed to the variability of that company's profits and can influence such
profits through its power over the company. Usually, control is presumed when the Company
holds, directly ot indirectly, more than half of the voting rights, taking also into account the

potentially exercisable or convertible voting rights.
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All subsidiaries are consolidated using the line-by-line method as of the date on which control

was transferred to the Group. They are excluded from consolidation as of the date on which

such control ceases.

Business combinations ate accounted for using the acquisition method. According to this

method:

)

The consideration transferred in a business combination is measured at fair value, calculated
as the sum of the fair value of the assets transferred and the liabilities assumed by the Group
at the acquisition date and the equity instruments issued in exchange for control of the
acquired company. Transaction charges are recognised in the income statement when they
are incutrred;

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed are
recognised at fair value at the acquisition date; as an exception, defetred tax assets and
liabilities, assets and liabilities for employee benefits, liabilities or equity instruments related
to share-based payments of the acquiree or share-based payments of the group issued in
lieu of contracts of the acquired company, and assets (or groups of assets and liabilides)
held for sale are instead valued according to their reference standard,;

Goodwill is determined as the excess of the sum of the consideration transferred to the
business combination, the value of equity attributable to minority interests and the fair value
of any investment previously held in the acquited company over the fair value of the net
assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the acquisition date. If the value of the net assets
acquired and the liabilities assumed at the acquisition date exceeds the sum of the
consideration transferred, the value of equity attributable to non-conttolling interests and
the fair value of any previously equity interests held in the acquired entity, that surplus is

immediately recognised in the income statement as income from the completed transaction,;
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iv)  Any conditional consideration provided under the terms of the business combination is
measured at fair value on the acquisition date and included in the value of the consider

transferred to the business combination in order to determine goodwill.

In business combinations achieved in stages, the previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
revalued at fair value at the date of acquisition of control and the resulting profit or loss is

recognised in the income statement.

If the initial values of a business combination are provisional as at the reporting date of the period
in which the business combination has occurred, the Group shall report the provisional amounts
of the items for which the final accounting cannot be determined. These provisional amounts
are adjusted during the measurement period to take account of new information obtained on
facts and circumstances that existed at the acquisition date which, if known, would have had an

impact on the value of the assets and liabilities recognised at that date.

Joint arrangements

Joint arrangements are accounted for in accordance with IFRS 11. In accordance with the
provisions of IFRS 11, a joint arrangement can be classified as a joint operation or joint venture
on the basis of a substantial analysis of the rights and obligations of the parties. Joint ventutes
are joint arrangements in which the joint venturers hold, inter alia, rights to the net assets of the
arrangement. Joint operations are joint arrangements whereby the parties have rights to the assets
and obligations for the liabilities, relating to the arrangement. Joint ventures are accounted for
using the equity method, whereas investments in a joint operation involve the recognition of
assets/liabilities and costs/tevenues related to the arrangement on the basis of contractual

rights/obligations regardless of the interest held.
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Transactions in foreign currency

Transactions in curtencies othet than the functional cutrency are recognised at the exchange rate
prevailing at the transaction date. Monetaty assets and liabilities denominated in curtencies other
than the Euro are subsequently adjusted according to the exchange rate prevailing at the reporting
date. Any exchange differences arising from commercial and financial transactions are recorded

in the income statement as "Financial charges" and "Financial income”.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in currencies other than the Euro are recorded at

historical cost using the exchange rate prevailing at the date of initial recognition of the transaction.

2.6 Measurement criteria
Concessions, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

Concessions and other intangible assets consist of non-monetary, identifiable and non-physical
elements that are controllable and capable of generating future economic benefits, as well as

goodwill when acquired for valuable consideration.

Concessions and other intangible assets are recognised at purchase and/or production cost,
including directly attributable expenses incurred to prepare the asset for use, net of accumulated

amortsation/depreciation and any impairment losses.

In the Consolidated Financial Statements, concessions were mainly recognised in relation to
business combinations in the fair value measurement of transferred assets. The value is amortised

according to the useful life of the asset. At year-end, or more frequently, the value of the asset is

tested for impairment.
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This test is performed by compating the cartying amount of the asset or group of asscts making
up the cash-generating unit (CGU) with the recoverable amount of the asset, which is the higher
of the fair value (net of any selling costs) and the value of the discounted net cash flows that are
expected to be generated by the asset or group of assets making up the CGU (value of use),

which have been identified in each individual power plant under concession.

For the impairment test, the cash flows for the term of the concession have been used, as
extrapolated from the Group business plan, and the expected residual value of the works and
assets constructed during the concession period, which the Group expects to obtain at the end

of the concession.

The discount rate used to discount the cash flows (WACC), which reflects the market valuation
of the cost of money and the specific business risks net of taxes, is 6.7% for the hydroelectric

sector, which is the Group's main market.

The goodwill on business combinations is initially recognised at cost at the acquisition date.
Goodwill is not amortised but is tested for impairment annually or mote frequently if specific
events ot changed circumstances suggest the asset may have been impaired. After initial

recognition, goodwill is recognised at cost net of any accumulated impairment losses.

With particular reference to "Software as a setvice" and applications managed through solutions

that use "Infrastructure as a service", the Group:

® capitalises the costs of licences together with the internal and external costs incurred for

their implementation and “customisation”, if they meet the requirements of IAS 38;
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® recognises, on an accrual basis, in the income statement, the petiodic costs associated with
the "Software as a setvice" and "Inftastructure as a service” services, using the deferral

technique.

Amortisation of the intangible assets begins when the asset is available for use, and is
systematically allocated in relation to the residual possibility of use, i.e. on the basis of the asset

estimated useful life.

The useful life of concessions and other intangible assets has been ¢stimated by the Group as

follows:

% rate

Concessions Term of the cuncession

Industrial patents and software 20%
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Tangible assets i

Tangible assets are measured at purchase or production cost, net of accumulated depreciation
and any impairment losses. The cost includes the expenses directly incurred to make the asset
ready for use, as well as any dismantling and removal charges that will be incurred as a result of

contractual obligations that require the asset to be returned in its original conditions.

Financial charges directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset

to be capitalised pursuant to IAS 23, are capitalised on the asset as part of its cost.
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The costs incurred for ordinary and/or cyclical maintenance and repairs are directly charged to
the income statement when incutred. The capitalisation of costs associated with the expansion,
modetnisation or improvement of structural elements owned by the entity or of third parties is
carried out to the extent they meet the requirements for being separately classified as an asset or

part of an asset.

Improvements on third party assets include the costs incurred for fitting and upgrading property

held other than based on ownership.

Depreciation is charged on a straight-line basis using rates that enable the asset to be depreciated

according to its useful life.

The useful life of each category of tangible assets has been estimated by the Group as follows:

Type of asset % rate
Commercial and industrial equipment 5%-15%
Office furniture 6%-12%
Buildings used 1n operations 1.5% - 4%
Llectronic machines 10% - 20%
Distribudon network 2.86%
Gas meters 5% - 6.66%
District heating building 3.5% - 4%
District heating system 5% - 25%
District heating substations 7%-8%
Heat transmission network 3.33%
Measurement and control devices 5% - 6.66%
[Tydroclectric plants 2.5%
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Assets transferable at no cost are depreciated in accordance with the financial method over the
petiod of time in which they are expected to give the related economic benefits, which coincides

with the duration of the concession for the use of water for hydroelectric purposes.

Leased assets (IFRS 16)
The rules introduced by IFRS 16 have been applied prospectively during first time adoption,

starting from 1 January 2019, adopting some simplifications allowed by the standard, whereby
contracts with a duration of less than twelve months and some low-value contracts have been
excluded from the measurement.

The standard defines "Leases" as contracts under which, for a fee, the lessee has the right to
control the use of a specific asset for a specified period of time. The application of the standard
to contracts identified as such results in the recognition of an asset, representing the right of use.
This asset is depreciated over the shorter of the asset's economic/technical life and the remaining
life of the contracts. The corresponding liability, recognised under financial liabilities, is equal to
the present value of the minimum future compulsory lease payments to be made by the lessee
and decreases as said payments are made. At the time of initial recognition of contracts, the tight
of use and the debt are measured by discounting future lease payments, throughout the duration
of the contracts, taking into account the possibility of renewal or early termination, only in cases
where the exercise of these options is reasonably certain. For discounting purposes, the explicit

rate specified in the contract is generally used, where available. In its absence, the rate on the

most tecent bond debt is used.
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Impairment of non-financial assets

At each reporting date, non-financial assets are analysed to assess whether there is any indication
of impairment. When events occut that indicate a likely impairment of non-financial assets, the
recoverability of those assets is verified by comparing the cartying amount with the recoverable
amount which is the higher of fair value, net of selling costs, and the value in use. The value in
use is determined by discounting the expected cash flows arising from use of the asset and, if
significant and reasonably determinable, as of its disposal untl the end of its useful life, net of
disposal costs. Expected cash flows are determined on the basis of reasonable and demonstrable
assumptions representative of the best estimate of future economic conditions that will occur
during the residual useful life of the asset, giving greater importance to external indications. The
expected future cash flows used to determine the value in use are based on the most recent
business plan approved by management and containing revenue, operating cost and capital
expenditure projections. For assets that do not generate highly independent cash flows, the
recoverable amount is determined in relation to the cash generating unit of which they are part
(that is, the smallest identifiable set of assets that generates autonomous revenue streams atising
from continued use). Discounting is catried out at a rate that reflects current market valuations
of the time value of money and the specific business risks that are not reflected in cash flow
estimates. Mote specifically, the discount rate used is the Weighted Average Cost of Capital
(WACC). The value in use is determined net of the tax effect as this method produces
substantially equivalent amounts to those obtainable by discounting the cash flows before tax at
a pre-tax discount rate obtained, iteratively, from the result of the after-tax evaluation. The
evaluation is carried out for each asset or cash generating unit. When the reasons for the write-
downs no longer apply, the asset value is restored and the adjustment is recognised in the income

statement as value reversal. The value is reinstated at the lower of the recoverable amount and
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the cartying amount before the write-downs previously made, less the depreciation charges that

would have been recognised if the write-down had not been made.

Trade receivables and other current and non-current receivables

Trade receivables and other current and non-cutrent receivables are non-derivative financial
instruments, mainly related to receivables from customers, not listed in an active market, from
which fixed ot determinable payments are expected. Trade receivables and other receivables are
recognised as cutrent assets, except for those with a contractual maturity of more than twelve
months from the reporting date, which are recognised as non-current assets.

These financial assets are recognised as assets when the Company becomes a party to the related
conttacts and are derecognised when the right to receive cash flows is transferred together with
all the risks and rewards associated with the transferred asset.

‘Trade receivables and other current and non-current receivables are initially recognised at their
fair value and subsequently at amortised cost, using the cffective interest rate, reduced for
impairment.

Impairment losses on receivables are determined as explained in the next section "Financial
assets" of these Notes. The amount of the impaitment loss is measured as the difference between
the carrying amount of the asset and the present value of the expected future cash flows.

Receivables are stated in the financial statements net of the provision for bad debits.

Current and non-current trade and other receivables are derecognised when the right to receive
cash flows is extinguished and all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset are substantially
transferred, or if the item is deemed to be definitively irrecoverable after all necessary recovery
procedures have been completed.
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Financial assets

Financial assets are initially recognised at fair value; they are subsequently classified under the

following three categoties:

e financial assets measured at amortised cost;
¢ financial assets measured at fair value recognised in other comprehensive income; and

e financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss.

The classification within the three categoties is based on the Group's business model and in
relation to the characteristics of the cash flows generated by the assets themselves. In patticulat,

a financial asset is measured:

¢ atamortised cost, if the Group's business model holds the asset to collect the telative cash
flows and not to realise profit even from the sale and the characteristics of the asset's cash
flows only correspond to the payment of principal and interest;

e at fair value with a balancing entry in the other components of the comprehensive income
statement if it is held with the aim of both collecting contractual cash flows and being
disposed of; and

¢ at fair value, with changes in value recognised in profit or loss, if the financial asset is held

for trading and does not come under the previous two categories.

In the case of changes at a business model level, the Group reclassifies the financial assets under

different categories, applying the effects of the reclassifications on a forward-looking basis.

The recoverability of financial assets not measured at fair value with effects in profit or loss is

measured taking account of expected losses, where "Loss" means the present value of all future
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cash failures, suitably integrated to take account of future expectations (socalled “Forward looking
information”). The estimate, initially made on the expected losses in the following twelve months,

in considetation of any progressive deterioration of the receivable, must be adjusted to cover the

expected losses ovet its entite life.

Financial assets are derecognised when the right to receive the related cash flows is extinguished
and all tisks and rewards of ownership are substantally transferred, or if the item is deemed to

be definitively irrecoverable after all necessary recovery procedures have been completed.

Inventories

Inventoties of taw materials, semi-finished goods and finished products are valued at the lower
of weighted average cost and market value at the date of the closing of the accounts. The
weighted average cost is determined for the reference period for each inventory code. The
weighted average cost includes the ditect costs of materials and labour and the indirect costs
(vatiable and fixed). Inventories are constantly monitored and, if necessary, obsolete inventories

are written-down with a contra-entry in the Income Statement.

In accordance with IAS 11, contract work in progress has been measured using the percentage
of completion method and is therefore recognised on the basis of the contractual consideration
accrued. If it is probable that the estimated total costs of an individual contract exceed the
estimated total revenues, the contract is measured at cost (so as to eliminate any profit margin
recognised in prior petiods) and the probable loss on completion of the contract is recognised as
a decrease in contract work in progress. If that loss exceeds the value of the work in progress,

the contractor shall recognise a provision for risks and charges equal to the excess. A probable
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loss is tecognised in the period in which it is expected based on an objective and redsonable
assessment of existing circumstances. The loss is recognised regardless of the progress of e
contract. The loss on one contract is not offset by expected positive margins on other contracts.

For the purpose of loss recognition, orders are therefore considered individually.

Financial derivatives

All derivative financial instruments (including any embedded derivatives subject to separation)
are measured at fair value.
Derivative financial instruments may be recognised according to procedutes established for
hedge accounting only when:
*  the hedging relationship is documented and the hedge has been designated since its
inception;
. the hedge is expected to be highly effective;
*  the effectiveness can be reliably measured;
*  the hedge is highly effective during the vatious accounting periods for which it is
designated.
When derivative instruments meet the requitements to be accounted for under hedge accounting,
the following accounting treatment applies:
i) Fair value hedge —if a derivative financial insttument is designated to hedge the exposure
to changes in the fair value of a recognised asset or liability, the change in the fair value
of the hedging derivative is recognised in the income statement, consistently with the fair

value measurement of the hedged assets and liabilities; (\? — /
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) Cash flow hedge — if a derivative financial instrument is designated to hedge the exposure
to the cash flow vatiability of an asset or liability or a highly probable transaction that
could have an effect on the income statement, the effective portion of the gain or loss on
the finan